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CERTIFICATION APPLICATION FOR AGGREGATORS/POWER 
BROKERS 

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and 
title (Example: Exhibit A-5 Experience). All attachments should bear the legal name of the 
Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence with the 
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 East Broad Street, Columbus, 
Ohio 43215-3793. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A-1 Applicant's legal name, address, telephone number and web site address 

L e g a l N a m e Priority Power Management, L.L.C 

A d d r e s s 310 W. Wall St., suite 500 Midland, TX 79701 

Telephone # (432)620-9100 Web site address (if any) vww.prioritypower.net 

A-2 List name, address, telephone number and web site address under which Applicant 
will do business in Ohio 

L e g a l N a m e Priority Power Management, L.L.C 

A d d r e s s 310 W. Wall St., Suite 500 Midland, TX 79701 

Telephone # (432)620-9100 Web site address (if any) www,prioritypower,net 

A-3 List all names under which the applicant does business in North America 
Priority Power Management, LLC 

A-4 Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters 

N a m e "̂ ^̂  Brooks 

T i t l e Vice President 
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B u s i n e s s a d d r e s s ^ ^ ^ l-amar eivd, Ste, 500 Arlington, TX 76011 

Telephone # 072)314-9066 FaX# (866)472-8789 
E - m a i l a d d r e s s ( i f a n y ) Jbrooks@prioritypower.net 

A-5 Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints 

Name Jeff Brooks 

Tit le '̂̂ ^ PtBsident 

B u s i n e s s a d d r e s s ^90 E. Lamar Blvd., ste. 500 Ariington, TX 76011 

Telephone # (972) 314-9066 FaX# (866)472-8789 
E-mail address (if any) ibrooks@prioritypower,net 

A-6 Applicant's address and toll-free number for customer service and complaints 

Customer Service address ^^ ̂ - '-̂ ^^ ̂ '̂̂ - ^^ ^ Ariington, TX 760i 1 
Toll-fi-ee Telephone # (800)221-7061 
E-mail address (if any) jbrooks@prioritypower,net 

F a X # (866)472-8789 

A-7 Applicant's federal employer identification number # 752919300 

A-8 Applicant's form of ownership (check one) 

n Sole Proprietorship 
n Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) 
D Corporation 

• Partnership 
• Limited Liability Company (LLC) 
D Other 

A-9 (Check all that apply) Identify each electric distribution utility certified territory in 
which the applicant intends to provide service, including identification of each customer 
class that the applicant intends to serve, for example, residential, small commercial, 
mercantile commercial, and industrial. (A mercantile customer, as defined in (A) (19) of Section 
4928.01 of the Revised Code, is a commercial customer who consumes more than 700,000 kWh/year or is 
part of a national account in one or more states). 

CI First Energy 
B Ohio Edison El Residential 
a Toledo Edison a Residential 
El Cleveland Electric Illuminating a Residential 

El Duke E n e i ^ • Residential 
a Monongahela Power a Residential 
B American Electric Power 

a Ohio Power a Residential 
a Columbus Southern Power a Residential 

a Dayton Power and Light a Residential 

a Commercial a Mercantile D Industrial 
• Commercial B Mercantile a Industrial 
D Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 
El Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 
a Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 

• Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 
a Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 
a Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 

mailto:Jbrooks@prioritypower.net


A-10 Provide the approximate start date that the applicant proposes to begin delivering services 

May 1,2014 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

A-11 Exhibit A-11 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" provide the names, titles, 
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant's principal officers, directors, partners, 
or other similar officials. 

A-12 Exhibit A-12 "Corporate Structure," provide a description of the applicant's corporate 
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and 
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to 
customers and companies that aggregate customers in North America. 

A-13 Exhibit A-13 "Companv History," provide a concise description of the applicant's 
company history and principal business interests. 

A-14 Exhibit A-14 "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws," if applicable, provide the 
articles of incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the Applicant is 
incorporated and any amendments thereto. 

A-15 Exhibit A-15 "Secretarv of State," provide evidence that the applicant has registered 
with the Ohio Secretary of the State. 

B. APPLICANT MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation," provide a list of all jurisdictions in which 
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the 
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or 
wholesale electric services including aggregation services. 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans," provide a description of the applicant's experience 
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing 
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with 
Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code. 



B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Summary of Experience," provide a concise summary of the applicant's 
experience in providing aggregation service(s) including contracting with customers to 
combine electric load and representing customers in the purchase of retail electric 
services, (e.g. number and types of customers served, utility service areas, amount of 
load, etc.). 

B-4 Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all 
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the 
applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to 
be certified to provide. 

B-5 Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of 
the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for violation of any 
consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years, 
n No D Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Consumer 
Protection Violations" detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

B-6 Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification, 
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service including 
aggregation service denied, curtailed, suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past 
two years, 
n No D Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-6 "Disclosure of 
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation" detailing such 
action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

C. APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

C-1 Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports," provide the two most recent Aimual Reports to 
Shareholders. If applicant does not have atmual reports, the applicant should provide 
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why. 

C-2 Exhibit C-2 "SEC Filings." provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If 
applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the 
applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 that 
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why. 



C-3 Exhibit C-3 "Financial Statements," provide copies of the applicant's two most recent 
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified 
financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this 
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial statements covering the life 
of the business. 

C-4 Exhibit C-4 "Financial Arrangements," provide copies of the applicant's financial 
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, bank 
commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,). 

C-5 Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements," provide two years of forecasted 
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the 
applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number of the preparer. 

C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating," provide a statement disclosing the applicant's credit rating 
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff 8L Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet 
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a 
similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, 
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the 
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant's parent or 
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant. 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report," provide a copy of the applicant's credit report from 
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information," provide a list and description of any 
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings made 
by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the 
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent 
years preceding the application. 



C-9 Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information," provide a statement describing any dissolution or 
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the 
application. 

' ^ 
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Siafature of Applicant &;title /vViyOA^lKS^ f^^Ak^lPIV*-

Swom and subscribed before me this ( ' y \ t \ day of rvL/''^^-v^, o ^ L / ' ' 
Month / ) O ^ Year 

-DWlIt d^>JkJ2n^ \l\aUtUmriit ^ ^ ? ^ w ^ , , / . 
Print N.me..d TO, ^Ul t^(>^^^^^ Signature of official administering oath 

My commission expires on 

^S""Z*i, VICKIE LASHEUE BROOKS 
f ^ D i ^ t Notary Public. State of Texas 
l i W . y My Commission Expires 
% W ^ March 14.2017 
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state o f ' f e / - / ^ : 

County of iCtiAO-J<y^ ; 

AFFIDAVIT 

(Town) 

„^(S\iyt^ Q l g J ^ Affiant, being duly swom/affirmed according to law, deposes and says that: 

He/she is the /mfi*ftf*ef ITlOAC '̂î Office of Affiant) of ^ ^ , ^ ^ g J > ^ g . ^ |̂  i !»fName of Applicant); 

That he/she is authorized to and does malce this affidavit for said Applicant, 

1. The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all statements made in the 
application for certification are true and complete and that it will amend its application while the 
application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the information provided in the 
application. 

2. The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities Commission 
of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-hours of electricity 
pursuant to Division (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.18, and Division (F) of 
Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code. 

3. The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to Sections 
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code. 

4. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio rules or 
orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 of the Revised Code. 

5. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complaint regarding any 
service offered or provided by the Applicant. 

6. The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code 
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process. 

7. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and regulations 
concerning consumer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions. 

8. The Applicant herein, attests that it will use its best efforts to verify that any entity with whom it has a 
contractual relationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements 
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. 

9. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
the electric distribution companies, the regional transmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the 
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and reliability of the electric service in 
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriate by the 
Commission. 

10. If applicable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere 
to the reliability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC), (2) the 
appropriate regional reliability council(s), and (3) the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. (Only 
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering) 



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the 
information supplied in the application within 30 days of such material change, including any change 
in contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Staff use in investigating customer 
complaints. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that 
he/5lj«XSpects said AppH^anlto be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof. 

Sworn and subscribed before me this 
Month 

Signature of official administering oath 

h Year ^ , <" 

Print Name and Title 

My commission expires on ?muckJ^,}^rf 

" ^ " f e * , VICKIE LASHEUE BROOKS 
i i a ^ ^ \ Notary Public. State of Texas 
9 »• ̂ N i'.s My Commission Expires 
% ^ ^ ^ MafChU.2017 



The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 

Certification Application for 
Aggregators/Power Brokers 

Supplement 
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Submitted By: 

PriorityP€)y\ier 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
310 W. Wall St., Suite 500 

Midland, TX 79701 
www.priority power, net 
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OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 
PmrityPonAner 

' ^ UM ^ M 4k a m M m M r 

Exhibit A-11. "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" 

Provide the names, titles, addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant's principal officers, directors, 
partners, or other similar officials. 

There are two (2) partners in Priority Power Management, LLC as listed below: 

Padraig Ennis 
Founding Principal 
310 W. Wall St., Suite 500 
Midland, TX 79701 
T (432) 620-9100 
F (432) 620-9145 
patennis@prioritvpower.net 

John j . Sick 
Managing Principal 
690 E. Lamar Blvd., Suite 500 
Arlington, TX 76011 
T (972) 314-9008 
F (817) 887-0866 
ibick@prioritvDower.net 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 4 
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Exhibit A-12. "Corporate Structure" 

Provide a description of the applicant's corporate structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, 
and a list of all affiliate and subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to 
customers and companies that aggregate customers in North America. 

Priority Power Management, LLC is a Texas limited liability company. It is a standalone entity and does not have 
any affiliates and or subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to customers 
and companies that aggregate customers in North America. 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 5 
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Exhibit A-13. "Company History" 

Provide a concise description of the applicant's company history and principal business interests. 

Priority Power Management, LLC ("PPM") is the leading Texas-based independent energy management and 
consulting services firm to large commercial, industrial and institutional clients. PPM provides unbiased and 
objective energy management services in the areas of energy information, supply and risk management, 
demand-side management and energy infrastmcture solutions. 

Established in January 2001 in Midland, Texas by a consortium of independent oil and gas businesses, individual 
energy executives, and a 20-year former TXU Energy industry veteran Padraig (Pat) Ennis, PPM quickly became a 
leader in the development of aggregation services in the Texas electricity market. PPM is a licensed aggregator 
by the Public Utility Commission of Texas (Lie. No. 80011). 

In 2003, John Bick, another former TXU Energy executive, joined the firm to expand services to other Texas and 
national markets. PPM continued to grow by expanding beyond its traditional west Texas roots, into other Texas 
markets and beyond. To complement the successful aggregation business model, PPM deployed a strategy to 
offer a comprehensive suite of energy services including energy information management, energy supply and 
risk management, and energy demand management services and infrastructure solutions. 

PPM is headquartered in Midland, TX, and maintains regional offices in Ariington, TX; Abilene, TX; and Houston, 
TX. 
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Exhibit A-14. "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws" 

inapplicable, provide the articles of incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the Applicant is 
incorporated and any amendments thereto. 

PPM's articles of incorporation are provided herein. 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 7 



COMPANY AGREEMENT 
OF 

Priority Power Management, LLC, 
a Texas Limited Liability Company 

This Company Agreement of Priority Power Management, LLC is executed as of October 1, 
2010 (the "Effective Date") by the paeons who sign and are identified as "MenAers" in this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

1.01 Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following 
meanings: 

"AffiUate" means, with refoence to any p^son, any other pa-son controlling, 
controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such person. 

"Agreement" means this Company Agreement, as amended fiom time to time. 

"Assignee" means a poson who receives a Transfer of all or a portion of the 
Membaship Interest of a Member, but who has not been admitted to the Company as a 
Menib^. 

"Bankrupt Member" means (excqjt to the extoit a Simple Majority consents 
othowise) any Meihb^ (a) that (0 makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (if) files a 
voluntary bankruptcy petition; (iii) becomes the subject of an order for relief or is declared 
insolvent in any federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings; (iv) files a petition or 
answer seeking for the Member a reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, 
liquidation, dissolution, termination, or similar relief under any law; (v) files an answer or 
other pleading admitting or filing to contest the matoial allegations of a petition fifed against 
the Member in a Proceeding of the type described in subclauses (i) through (iv) of this clatise 
(a); or (vi) seeks, consents to, or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or 
Uquidator of the Meihber's or of all or any substantial part of the Meniba-'s properties; or (b) 
against whidi a Proceeding seeking reorganization, atrangranent, con^sition, readjustmoit, 
liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under any law has been commenced and one hundred 
twenty (120) days have expired without dismissal thereof or with respect to which, without 
the Membo-'s consent or acquiescoice, a trustee, receiver, or liquidator of the Member or of 
all or any substantial part of the Menriier's properties has been appointed and ninety (90) days 
have expired without the appointment's having been vacated or stayed, or ninety (90) days 
have expired after the date of expiration of a stay, if the appoinbnoit has not previously been 
vacated. 

"Business Day" means any day o t h ^ than a Saturday, a Sunday, or a holiday on whidi 

1 
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national banking associations in the State of Texas are closed. 

"Capital Account" means a capital account maintained for a Membo- as provided by 
Treasury Regulation 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv) of the Regulatfons of the Internal Revenue Service. 

"Coital Contribution" means the amount of money and the Net Value of property 
other than money contributed to the Company by a Member. 

"Capital Commitment" of a Member represents the aggregate amount of capital that 
such Merhber has agreed to contribute to the Company. 

"Cotificate of Formation" means the initio amended, and restated certificate of 
formation of the Company. 

"Con:q)any" nwans Priority Power Management, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company. 

"De&ult Interest Rate" means a rate per annum equal to the lesser of (a) ten percent 
(10%) plus the prime rate published in The WaO Street Journal on the day the rate is 
determined (or the most recoit day on which The Wall Street Journal was published if the 
papa- is not published on the day the rate is determined), or, (b) the maximum rate permitted 
by applicable law. 

"Former Member" means any poson who had executed this Agreonent, as of the date 
of this Agreonent as a Member, or hereafter admitted to the Company as a Member, as 
provided in the Agreement, but who is no hngec a Member of the Company, however, this 
term does not include a person wk) ceases to be a Member as a result ofbankruptcy, default 
or expulsion. 

"Fundamental Business Transaction" has that meaning assigned to it by the d^nitions 
in the TBOC, as may be amended fiom time to time, and includes (a) a merger, (b) an interest 
exchange, (c) a conversion, or (d) a sale of all or substantially all of an entity's assets (with or 
without good will), other than in the usual and regular course of the Company's business. 

"General Interest Rate" means a rate per annum equal to the lesser of (a) the prime 
rate published in The Wall Street Journal on the day the rate is determined (or the most recoit 
day on which The Wall Street Journal was published if the paper is not published on the day 
the rate is determined), or, (b) the maximum rate permitted by applicable law. 

"Internal Revenue Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and any successor 
statute, as amended fi-om time to time. 

"Memba" means any person executing this Agreement as of the date of this 
Agreement as a Member or hereafter adnutted to the Company as a Member as provided in 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 9 



this Agreement, but does not include any person who has ceased to be a Member of the 
Corapaay. 

"Membership Interest" means the interest of a Member in the Company, including, 
without limitation, rights to distributions (liquidating or otherwise), allocations, information, 
and to consent or approve. 

"Net Value" means, in connection with a Coital Contribution of property, the value 
of the asset less any indebtedness to which the asset is subject when contributed. 

"Percentage Interest" means the ratio in which the Members shaD share profits and 
losses, as provided in this Agreement. The sum of the Mendieis' Interests shall be one 
hundred percent (100%). 

"Person" means any business entity, trust, estate, executor, administrator, or 
individual 

"Proceeding" means any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, 
whether civil, crimmal, administrative, arbitrative or investigative. 

"Simple Majority" means one or more Moiibers having among them more than fifty 
percent (50%) of the Percoitage Interests of all Members. 

"Supa- Majority" means one or more Members having among them more than 
sixty-six and sixty-seven hundredths percent (66.67%) of the Percentage Interests of all 
Members. 

"TBOC" means the Texas Business Organizations Code, incltiding any successor 
statute, as amended from time to time. 

"Transfer" means any sale, transfer, encumbrance, gift, donation, assignment, pledge, 
hypothecation, or other form of transfer of a Membership Interest or any portion of a 
Membership Interest, whether voluntary or involuntary, whether attempted or con^leted, and 
whether during the transferor's lifetime or upon or afto- the transferor's death, including by 
operation of law, court order, judicial process, foreclosure, levy or attachment. 

Other terms defined herein have the meaning so given them. 

ARTICLE II 
ORGANIZATION 

2.01 Formation. The Company has been organized as a Texas limited liability company by 
filing a Certificate of Formation with the Secretary of State of Texas, effective January 1,2008, which 
HMiy be amended or restated fiom time to time. AMEN Properties, Inc. was the sole Member of the 
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Conqiany until October 1, 2010 w t ^ i John Bick and Padraig Ennis acquired 100% of the 
Mohbership Intorest in the Company. The Limited Liability Conq)any Agreement elective January 1, 
2008, adopted by AMEN Properties, Inc on December 17, 2007, is hereby revoked, and said 
Agreement is hereby replaced with this Company Agreemrait effective Octoba 1, 2010. This 
Company Agreement is adopted by unanimous consent of the Metcbers of the Company. 

2.02 Name. The name of the Company is "Priority Power Management, LLC" and all 
Company busine^ must be conducted in that name or such other names that cotnply with applicable 
law as the Monbers may select from time to time. 

2.03 Reg^ered Office and Registered Agent The registered office of the Company 
required by the TBOC to be maintained in the State of Texas shall be 310 W. WaD Street, Suite 500, 
M^land, T^ias 79701, or such othar office (which need not be a place of business of the Con^any) 
as the Members may designate fi-om time to time in the manner provided by law. The registered 
agent of the Company in the State of Texas shall be Padraig Eimis, or sudi other person or persons as 
the Members may designate from time to time in the manna- provided by law. 

2.04 Principal Office and Otlier Offices. The principal office ofthe Company in the United 
States shall be 310 W. Wall Sti-eet, Suite 500, Midland, Texas 79701, or such place as the Membos 
may designate from time to time, which need not be in the State of Texas. The Company may have 
such other offices as the Mendiers may designate from time to time. 

2.05 Purposes. The primary ptirposes of the Company shall be any lawfiil purpose which 
may be undertake by the company in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Texas 
Business Organizations Code. 

2.06 Powers. The Company shall have all powers necessary, suitable or convenient for the 
accomplishment of the purposes of the Company, including without limitatfon (a) to make and 
perform all contracts; (b) to borrow or lend money and secure payment thereof (c) to engage in all 
activities and transactions; and (d) to have all powers available to a limited liability company under (i) 
the TBOC, (ii) any other laws in tite State of Texas, and (iii) the laws of any other jurisdi(^ion where 
the Company conducts business. 

2.07 Foreign Qualification. Prior to the Company's conducting business in any jurisdiction 
other than Texas, the Membo^ shall cause the Company to comply, to the extent procedures are 
available and those matters are reasonably within the control of the Members, with all requirements 
necessary to qualify the Company as a foreign limited liability con^any in that jurisdictioa Each 
Member shall imnusdiatety execute, acknowledge, swear to, and deliver all certificates and other 
instrumoits confoiming with this Agreonent that are necessary or appropriate to qualify, continue, 
and terminate the Company as a foreign limited liability company in all such jurisdictions in which the 
Company may conduct business. 

2.08 Term. The Con^any will commence as provided in the Certificate ofFotmatwn for the 
Company filed with the Seoretaiy of the State of Texas, and will continue until the Company 
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terminates under the terms of this Agreemoit 

2.09 Mergers and Exchanges. The Conq>any maybe a party to a merger, an exdiange, or 
acquisitfon under the TBOC, subject to the requironents of this Agreement. 

2.10 No State-Law Partnersliip. The Members intend that the Con:q)any not be a 
partnership, a limited partnoship, or a joint voiture, and that no Member be a partner or joint 
voiturer of any other Member, for any purposes other than fodoai and state tax pxirposes, and this 
Agreonent may not be construed to suggest otherwise. 

ARTICLE ra 
MEMBERSmP 

3.01 Initial Members, Capital Commitments, and Percentage Interests. The persons 
listed on Exhibit A are haeby admitted to the Conq)any as a Member, effective contemporaneously 
with the Effective Date of this Conq)any Agreemoit. Set forth opposite the name of eadi Mesnba 
listed on Exhibit A is such Membo's Pacoxtage Interest. Exhibit A may be amended fit)m time to 
time to reflect changes in or additions to the membership of the Company. Any sudi amended 
Exhibit A shall (a) supersede all prior Exhibit A's, (b) become part of this Agreement, and (c) be kept 
on file at the principal office of the Company. Each Monber represoits that the Member is acquiring 
an interest in the Company for the account of such Member and not with a view to distribution 
thereof within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state securities laws. 
The Monber will not transfer such interest in contravention of that act or any applicable state or 
fedaal securities laws. 

3.02 Additional Members. Additional persons may be admitted to the Company as 
Additional Members on such terms and conditk)ns as shall be determined by unanimous consent of the 
Members. The terms of admission or issuance must specify the Po-centage Interests and the Capital 
Commitments applicable ther^o. The terms of admission or issuance may also provide for the 
creation of different classes or groups of Mend)as having different rights, powers, and duties. The 
Membos shall reflect the creation of any new dass or group in an amendment to this Agreement 
indkating the diffoent rights, powers, and duties, and sudi an amendmoit need be executed only by 
the Members. 

3.03 Member Rights Specified in Agreement Except as otherwise specifically provided in 
this Agreement, no Member shall have the right (a) to sell, transfer or assign its interest in the 
Cotnpaay, (b) to require partition of the property of the Company, (c) to compel the sale ofConqjany 
assets; or (d) to cause the winding up of the Company. 

3.04 No Authority. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, no Member 
(other than an officer) has the authority or power to (a) transact business in the name of or on hebalf 
of the Company, (b) bind or obligate the Company, or (c) incur any expenditures on behalf of the 
Company. 
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3.05 Liability to Tiiird Parties. No Member shall be liable for the debts, obligatujns or 
liabilities of the Company, inchiding under a judgmoit decree or order of a court. 

3.06 Withdrawal A Member may withdraw fiom the Company with sixty (60) day^ notice 
to the Monbos of the Company, subject to winding up or termination as provided in Article XVI of 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 
CAPITAL CONTRTOUTIONS 

4.01 Initial Contributions. Contemporaneous with the execution of this Agreement, each 
Membo- may make an initial Capital Contribution, but is not required to do so, and each Member 
shall receive the percoitage interest in the Company described for that Moiiber in Exhibit A. 

4.02 No Further Contributions. No Men:d)er shall be required to make any Capital 
Contributions otho- than ttiose specifically described by this Agreonent, unless agreed to in writing by 
the contributing Mrariber or required by the TBOC. 

4.03 Return of Contributions. No Member is entitled to the return of any part of its Coital 
Contributions or to be paid interest in respect of dther its Capital Accoimt or its Capital 
Contributions. An unrepaid Capital Contribution is not a liability of the Con^any or of any Member. 

4.04 Loans by Members. If the Company does not have suffident cash to pay its 
obligations, any Monber that may agree to do so with the Members' consent may advance all or part 
of the needed fimds to or on behalf of the Conq)any. An advance described in this paragraph 
constitutes a loan from the Member to the Company, bears interest at the General Interest Rate from 
the date of the advance until the date of payment, and is not a Capital Contribution. 

4.05 Capital Accounts. A Capital Account shall be established and maintained for each 
Member. The Capital Account of eadi Member: 

(a) shall consist of (i) the amount of money contributed by that Member to the 
Company, and (ii) the &ir market value of property contributed by that Member to the Covapany (net 
of liabilities secured by the contributed property that the Conq)any is considered to assume or take 
subjed to under Sedion 752 of the Intonal Revalue Code); 

(b) shall be increased by allocations to that Member of Company income and gain (or 
items thereof), including income and gain exempt from tax and income and gain desaibed in Treasury 
Regulation § 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv)(g), but excluding income and gain described in Treasury Regulation § 
L704-l(bX4Xi); and 

(c) shall be decreased by (i) the amount of money distributed to that Meniba by the 
Company, (ii) the lair market value of property distributed to that Membo- by the Company (nd of 
liabilities secured by the distributed property that the Meniber is considaed to assume or take stibjed 
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to under sedion 752 of the Internal Revenue Code), (iii) allocatk>ns to that Memba of expenditures 
of the Con^any described in Sedion 705(a)(2)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, and (iv) albcations 
of Company loss and deduction (or items thereoQ, including bss and dedudfon described in Treasury 
Regulation § 1.704-l(b)(2)(iv)(g), but exchiding items described in clause (c)(iii) above and toss or 
dedudton desOTbed in Treasury Regulation § 1.704-l(b)(4)(0 or § 1.704-1 (l3)(4)(iii). 

The Capital Account of each Monba also shall be maintained and adjusted as pomitted by the 
provisions of Treasury Regulation § 1.704-l(b)(2Xiv)(^ and as required by the o tha provisions of 
Treasury Regulation § 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv) and 1.704-1 (b)(4), including adjustments to refled the 
allocations to the Members of depredation, depldion, amortization, and gain or loss as computed for 
tax purposes, as required by Treasury Regulation § 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv)(g). A Member that has more 
than one Moidiership Interest shall have a single Capital Account that refleds all its Mend>ership 
Interests, regardless of the class of Membership Intaests owned by that Member and regardless of the 
time or manner in which those Menibaship Intaests w a e acquired. On the transfa of all or part of a 
Membership Interest, the Capital Account of the transferor that is attributable to the transfored 
Membership Intaest or part thereof shall cany o v a to the transferee M a n b a in accordance with the 
provisions of Treasury Regulation § 1.704-l(b)(2)(h^)(l). 

ARTICLE V 
ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS 

5.01 Allocations. 

(a) Except as may be required by Section 704(c) of the Intonal Revalue Code and 
Treasury Regulation § 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv)(Q(4), all items of income, gain, bss, deduction and oedit of 
the Company shall be allocated among the Menfl>ers in accordance with their Percentage Interests. 

(b) AU itons of income, gain, loss, dedudion, and credit altocableto any Menibaship 
Intaest that may have been transferred shaQ be albcated between the transferor and the transferee 
based on the portion of the calendar year during which each was recognized as owning thai 
Membership Intaest, without regard to the results of Company operations during any particular 
portbn of that calendar year and without regard to whetha cash distributions were made to the 
transferor or the transfoee during that calendar year; provided, howeva, that this aOocation must be 
made in accordance with a method permissible unda Sedion 706 of the Internal Revenue Code and 
the regulations thereunda. 

(c) In the event any Memba unexpededly receives any adjustments, allocations or 
distributions described in § 1.704-l(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) or (6) of the Treasury Regulatfons, items of 
the Conqjanys income and gain shall be specially allocated as a qualified income of&d to each such 
Memba in an amount and manna sufficient to eliminate, to the extoit required by the Treasury 
Regulations, the Adjusted Capital Account Deficit of such M a n b a as quickly as possible, provided 
that an aUocation pursuant to this paragraph 5.01 (c) shall be made only if and to the extent that such 
M o h b a has an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit afta all o tha allocations provkied for in this Artide 
have been tentatively made as if this paragraph 5.01(c) w a e not in this Agreement. 
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(d) For the purpose of ddermining the Mend)ers entitled to receive allocations as 
provided for in this Agreement, the Members may fix in advance a record date for any sudi 
ddomination of Monbers, sudi date in any case to be s d not more than (sixty (60)) days and not less 
than (ten (10)) days prior to the date on which the action authorizing the allocation is taken. If no 
record date is fixed, thai the date on which the Members take action to authorize such an allocation 
pursuant to this Agreement and the Internal Revenue Code, shall be the record date for such 
ddomination of Monbers. 

5.02 Distributions. 

(a) From time to time (but at least once each calendar year) the Monbers shaO 
ddermine in thdr reasonable judgment to what extent (if any) the Coiiq)any's cash on hand exceeds 
its current and anticipated needs, inchiding, without limitation, for operating oepenses, debt service, 
acquisitkms, and a reasonable contingency resove. If such an excess exists, the Moiibas may cause 
the Company to distribute to the Membos, in accordance with their Pacoitage Intaests, an amount 
in cash ddermined by the Members to be appropriate taking into account the best intaest of the 
Conq)any. The Membos shall cause the Company to distribute to the Members an amount at least 
equal to the tax liability mcurred by the Members for the Members' share of income goierated by the 
Conqiany and for which the Members will be taxed. Any time a distribution is to be made to one 
Mend>o, an equal distribution (based upon ownership pocoitages) must also be made to the o tha 
Member(s). 

(b) From time to time the Members also may cause property of the Company o tha 
than cash to be distributed to the Monbers, which distribution must be made in accordance with their 
Percoitage Intaests and may be made subject to existing liabilities and obligations. Immediatefy prior 
to sudi a distribution, the Capital Accounts of the Members shall be adjusted as provided in Tre^tuy 
Regulation § 1.704-1 (b)(2XivXf). 

(c) For the purpose of ddeimining the Membos entitled to recdve a distribution as 
provided for in this Agreement, the Members may fix in advance a record date for any such 
ddermination of Members, such date in any case to be sd not more than (sixty (60)) days and not less 
than (ten (10)) days prior to the date on which the adion authorizing the distribution is taken. If no 
record date is fixed, thai the date on which the Monbers take action to authorize such a distribution 
pursuant to this Agreement and the Internal Revenue Code, shall be the record date for such 
ddermination of Members. 

ARTICLE VI 
MANAGEMENT 

6.01 Management by Members. The managonent of the Company is fiiUy resoved to its 
Members in proportion to the Memfoas' respedive Pacoitage Interests, the Moidios shall have the 
sole and exclusive control of the managemoit, business and aflairs of the Company, and the Members 
shall make aU decisions and take all adions for the Coinpany not otherwise provided for in this 
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Agreement, including, without limitation, the following: 

(a) entering into, making, and perfoiming contracts, agreements, and otha 
undertakings binding the Company that may be necessary, appropriate, or advisable in 
furtherance of the purposes of the Company and making all decisions and waivers thereunder, 

(b) opening and maintaining bank and investment accounts and arrangemoits, drawing 
checks and otho orders for the payment of money, and designating individuals with authority 
to sign or give instrudions with respect to those accounts and arrangements; 

(c) maintaining the assds of the Company in good order, 

(d) collecting sums due the Company; 

(e) to the extent that fimds of the Con^any are available thoefor, paying debts and 
obligations of the Company, 

(f) acquiring, utilizing for Company purposes, and disposing of any asset of the 
Company; 

(g) borrowing money or otherwise committing the oedit of the Company for 
Company activities and vohmtaiy prepayments or extensions of debt; 

(h) seleding, removing, ai^ changing the authority and responsibility of lawyers, 
accountants, and otha advisers and consultants; 

(i) obtaining insurance for the Company; 

(j) determining distributions of Company cash and otho propoty as provided in 
paragraph 5.02 of this Agreement; 

(k) establishing a seal for the Company, and 

(1) designating one or more committees, each of which shall be conq>rised of one or 
more Monbers, to exocise any authority of the Monbers in the management, business and 
af&irs of the Company. 

6.02 Restrictions. Notwithstanding tlK provisions of paragraph 6.01 ofthis Agreement, the 
Members may not cause the Conq)any to do any of the foQowing without conqjlying with the 
applicable requirements set forth betow: 

(a) oi to into a Fundamoital Business Transaction, without complying with the 
applicable procedures set forth in the TBOC regarding approval by the Members (unless such 
provision is roidoed inapplicable by anotho provision of applicable law); 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 16 



(b) do any ad in violatton ofthis Agreement; 

(c) admit a Monbo, excqpt as expressly permitted by this Agreonent; 

(d) possess Company propoty or assign rights in Company property, otho than for a 
Company purpose; 

(e) amoid this Agreenmit, except as expressly permitted by this Agreement; 

(t) enqiloy any poson, otho fiill or part time, without unanimous consent of the 
Mend)ers;or 

(g) commit the Con^any to a contradual obligation longo than twelve (12) months 
without unanimous consent of the Membos. 

6.03 Conflicts of Interest Subjed to the otho express provisions ofthis Agreement, each 
Membo and offico of the Company at any time and from time to time may engage in and possess 
intoests in o t t^ business voitures of any and every type and description, independently or with 
others, including ones in con^etition with the Company, Avith no obligation to offo to the Company 
or any otho Moiibo or offico the ri^t to participate thodn. 

6.04 Contracts or Transactions with Interested Directors or Officers. This provision 
applies only to a contract or transadion between the Company and one or more of its Members or 
officos, or between the Con^any and an entity or otho organization in whidi one or more of the 
Conqjanys Members or officers is a managerial official or has a financial intoest. 

An otherwise valid contrad or transadion is valid notwithstanding that a Membo or offico of the 
corporation is present at or partidpates in the meding of the Mohbos or officers, or of a committee 
of the Members or officers that authorizes the contrad or transaction, or votes or signs, in the 
person's capadty as a Membo or offico, a written consoit of Members or officers to authorize the 
contrad or transadion, if: (I) the matoial &ds as to the relationship or intoest and as to the 
contract or transadion are disctosed to or known by (a) the Moiibers or officos or a committee of 
the Members or officers and the Monbers or officers or committee in good feith authorize the 
contract or transadion by the affirmative vote of the majority of the disintoested Members or oflnceis 
or committee members, r^ardless of whoho the disintoested Members or officers or committee 
members constitute a quorum; or (b) the Members of the Company, and the Members in good &ith 
approve the contrad or transaction by vote of the Members; or (2) the contrad or transaction is fair 
to the Company when the contrad or transadion is authorized, approved, or ratified by the Members 
or officers, a committee of the Members or officers, or the Members of the Company. 

ARTICLE Vn 
CONFIDENTLiL INFORMATION 
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7.01 Confidential Information. TheMembersacknowledgethat, from time to time, they 
may receive infoitnatfon fix>m or regarding the Con^any in the nature of trade secrds or that 
otherwise is confidential, the release of whidi may be damaging to the Company or persons with 
which it does business. Each Membo shall hold in strid confidence any information it receives 
regarding the Cornpany that is identified as being confidential (and if that information is provided in 
writing, that is so marked) and may not disclose it to any person otho than anotho Mendio, except 
for disclosures (i) compelled by law (but the Membo must notify the Monbos promptly of any 
request for that information, before disctosing it, if practicable), (ii) to advisers or representatives of 
the Membo or persons to which that Membo's Membership Interest may be transferred as permitted 
by this Agreonent, but only if the redpioits have agreed to be bound by the provisions of this 
paragraph, or (iii) of information that Membo also has received from a source independent of the 
Con^any that the Moiibo reasonably believes obtained that information without breach of any 
obligation of confidentiality. 

7.02. Specific Performance. The Monbers adoiowledge that breadioftheprovistons of 
paragraph 7.01 ofthis Agreement may cause irreparable injury to the Company for which nnndaiy 
damages are inadequate, difficult to compute, or both. Accordingly, the Members agree that the 
provisions of paragraph 7.01 ofthis Agreonoit maybe enforced by spedfic performance or through 
injunctive relief if spedfic performance is not a viable remedy. 

ARTICLE V m 
MEETING OF MEMBERS 

8.01 Meetings. 

(a) A quorum shall be presoit at a meding of Members if the holders of a Simple 
Majority are represoited at the meeting in person or by proxy. With resped to any matto, otho than 
a matto for whidi the affirmative vote of the holders of a spedfied portion of the Pocentage 
Intoests of all Members entitled to vote is required by the TBOC or this Agreonoit, the affrmative 
vote of a Simple Majority at a meetii^ of Mendiers at which a quorum is present shall be the act of 
the Moiibos, except as provided by paragraph 8.01(b) or by anotho specific provision in this 
Agreonent. 

(b) The unanimous consent of the Members shall be required for the Company to ento 
into a Fundamental Business Transadion. 

(c) All medings of the Members shall be held at the principal place ofbusiness of the 
Con^any or at such otho place within or outside the State of Texas as shaU be specified or fixed in 
the notices or waivers of notice thoeo^ provided that any or all Members may participate in any such 
medings by means of confoence telq)hone or similar communications equipmoit pursuant to 
paragraph 8.06 ofthis Agreement. 
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(d) Notwithstanding the otho provisfons of the Certificate of Formation or this 
Agreonoit, the chairman of the meeting or the hokiers of a Supo Majority shall have the powo to 
adjourn such meding from time to time, without any notice otho than announconoit at the needing 
of the time and place of the holding of the adjourned meding. If such meeting is adjourned by the 
Members, such time and place shall be determined by a vote of the holders of a Supo Majority. 
Upon the resumption of sudi adjourned meding, any business may be transaded that might have been 
transacted at the meding as originally called. 

(e) An annual meding of the Members for the transaction of otho business as may 
propoly come before the meding, shall be hekl at such place, within or outside the State ofTexas, on 
such date and at such time as the Members shall fix and so forth in the notice of the meeting, which 
date shall be within thirteoi (13) months subsequent to the date of organization of the Company or 
the last annual meeting of Menibers, whichevo most recently occurred. 

(f) Special meetings of the Moiibos for any propo purpose or purposes may be called 
at any time by the hokiers of at least ten percent of the Pocentage Intaests of aU Members. If not 
othowise stated in or fixed in accordance with the ronaining provisions hereof the record date for 
ddermining Monbers entitled to call a special meeting is the date any Membo first signs the notice of 
that meeting. Onfy business within the purpose or purposes described in the notice (or waivo 
thoeoQ required by this Agreement may be conducted at a spedal meding of the Menibers. 

(g) Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meding and, in the 
case of a special meding, the purpose or purposes for which the meding is called, shall be given not 
less than toi (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of the meding, otho posonally or by 
mail, by or at the diredion of the person calling the meding, to each Membo entitled to vote at such 
meeting. If mailed, any such notice shall be deemed to be given when deposited in the United States 
mail, addressed to the Membo at his address on the voting list provided for in paragraph 8.02 ofthis 
Agreemoit, with postage thoeon prepaid. 

(h) The date on wludi notice of a meding of Members is mailed or the date on which 
the resolution of the Members declaring a distribution is adopted, as the case may be, shall be the 
record date for the determination of the Membos entitled to notice of or to vote at such meding, 
inchiding any adjournment thoeo^ or the Membos entitled to receive such distribution. 

(i) Notice of meOings may be given to Monbos by fticsimile or electronic n^ssage (e-
nuul). 

8.02 Voting List The Metiiyeis shall make, at least ten (10) days before each meding of 
Members, a complde list of the Monbers entitled to vote at such meeting or any adjournment 
thoeof^ arranged in alphabdical ordo, with the address of and the Pocentage Intoests held by eadi. 
For a period often (10) days prior to such meding, such list shall be kept on file at the roistered 

office or prindpal place ofbusiness of the Company and shall be subjed to inspection by any Membo 
at any time during usual business hours. Such list shaU also be produced and kept open at the time 
and place of the meding and shall be subject to the inspedion of any Membo during the whole time 
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of the meding. The original morbership records shall be prima-&de evidence as to who are the 
Mohbos entitled to examine such list or transfo records or to vote at any meeting of Monbers. 
Failure to comply with the requiremoits ofthis paragraph shall not affed the validity of any adion 
takoi at the meding. 

8.03 Proxies. A Mend>o may vote otho in person or by proxy ocecuted in writing by the 
Monbo. A telegram, telex, cablegram or similar transmission by the Membo, or a photographic, 
photostatic, facsimile or similar reproduction of a writing executed by the Membo shall be treated as 
an execution in writing for purposes ofthis paragraph Proxies for use at any meding ofMembos or 
in connedion with the taking of any action by written consoit shall be filed with the Membos, before 
or at the time of the meeting or execution of the written consoit, as the case may be. All proxies shall 
be received and takoi charge of and aU baUots shall be received and canvassed by the Membos, who 
shall dec^e all questions touching upon the qualification of voters, the validity of the proxies, and the 
acceptance or rejection of votes, unless an inspector or inspectors shall have been ^pointed by the 
chairman of the meding, in which event such inspector or inspectors shall dedde all such questions. 
No proxy shall be vaUd afto eleven (11) months fittm the date of its execution unless otherwise 
provided in the proxy. A proxy shall be revocable unless the proxy form conspicuously states that the 
proxy is irrevocable and the proxy is coupled with an intoest. Should a proxy designate two or more 
persons to act as proxies, unless that instrument shall provide to the contrary, a nugority of such 
persons present at any meeting at which their powos thereundo are to be exercised shaU have and 
may exodse all the powos of voting or giving consoits thoeby conferred, or if only one be present, 
thoi such powers may be exodsed by that one; or, if an even numbo attend and a majority do not 
agree on any particular issue, the Company shall not be required to recognize such pro?^ with respect 
to such issue if such proxy does not spedfy how the Percentage Intoests that are the stibjed of such 
proxy are to be voted with respect to such issue. 

8.04 Conduct of Meetings. AU medings of the Membos shall be presided ovo by the 
chairman of the meding, who shall be designated by a Simple Majority of the Monbers. The 
dudrman of any meding of Members shall determine the ordo ofbusiness and the procedure at the 
meding, inchiding the regulation of the manno of voting and the condud of discussion. 

8.05 Action by Unanimous Written Consent Without Meeting. 

(a) Any action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of 
Members may be taken without a meding, without prior notice, and without a vote, by unanimous 
written consent of the Mohbois or committee monbers, as the case may be, setting forth the adion 
so taken. No writtoi consent shall be effedive to take the adion that is the subjed to the consent 
unless, within sixty (60) days afto the date of the earliest dated consent delivered to the Conqiany in 
the manno required by this paragraph, the signed consent or consoits are dehvoed to the Company 
by delivery to its roistered office, its prim^al place ofbusiness, or the Monbers. Delivery shall l>e 
by hand or certified or registoed mail, return recdpt requested. Delivety to the Company's principal 
place ofbusiness shall be addressed to the Members. Every written consent shall bear the date of 
signature of each Menibo who signs the consent, ai^ the consoit may be in one or more 
counteiparts. A telegram, telex, cablegram or similar transmission by a Membo, or a photographic, 
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photostatic, fecsunile or similar reproduction of a writing signed by a Membo, shall be regarded as 
signed by the Membo for purposes ofthis paragraph. The signed consent or a signed copy of the 
consent shall be kept on file at the prindpal office of the Company. 

(b) The record date for ddennining Menibers oititled to consent to adion in writing 
without a meeting shall be the first date on which a signed writtoi consent sdting forth the adion 
takoi or proposed to be taken is ddivoed to tt» Company by delivoy to its registoed office, its 
principal place ofbusiness, or the Moibers. Delivery shall be by hand or by certified or registoed 
mail, return recdpt requested. Delivery to the Company's prindpal place of business shall be 
addressed to the Members. 

(c) If any actton by Members is takoi by written consoit, any artides or documents 
filed with the Seodary of State ofTexas as a result of the taking of the action shaD state, in Ueu of 
any statement required by the TBOC concerning any vote of Menibers, that written consent has been 
given in accordance with the provisions of the TBOC and that any written notice required by the 
TBOC has been given, 

8.06 Action by Telephone Conference or Otiier Remote Communications Technology. 
Members may participate in and hokl a meding by means of conference telephone or similar 
communications equipment by which all persons partidpating in the meeting can hear each otho. Or, 
anotho suitable eledronic communications syston may be used including video-confooicing 
technotogy or the Internd, but onfy if each membo entitled to participate in the meding consents to 
the meding being held by means of that system and the system provides access to the meeting in a 
manno or using a method by which each membo partidpating in the meding can communicate 
concurrently with each otho participant. Participation in such meeting ̂ lall constitute attendance and 
presence in person at such meding, except whoe a person partidpates in the meding for the express 
purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not lawfully 
called or convened. 

8.07 Classes of Members; Voting. At an annual or special meding called for that purpose, 
the Monbers may fiom time to time establish classes or groups of Members. One or more of the 
Members' groins or classes may have certain expressed relative rights, powers, and duties, including 
voting rights, to be established at the time when the classes or groups are oeated, with seniority 
granted to one or more class or group as designated by the Members. 

ARTICLE DC 
OFFICERS 

9.01 Qualification. The Monbers may, from time to time, designate one or more persons to 
be officers of the Conq)any. No offico need be a resident of the State ofTexas or a Monbo. Any 
officers so designated shall have such authority and perform such duties as the Menibos may, fiom 
time to time, delegate to them. The Members may assign titles to particular officers. Unless the 
Members decide otherwise, if the title is one commonly used for officers of a business corporation, 
the assignment of such title shaU constitute the delegation to such offico of the authority and duties 
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that are normally associated with that office, subjed to any spedfic delegatkin of authority and duties 
made to such offico by the Menibers pursuant to this paragraph. Each offico shall hoM office until 
his successor shall be duly designated and qualify for such office, until his death, or until he shall 
resign or shall have been removed in the manno hereinafto provided. Any vacancy occurring in any 
office of the Company may be filled by the Monbers. Any numbo of offices may be hekl by the one 
person. 

9.02. Compensation. The salaries or other conq>ensation,ifany, of the officers and agoits 
of the Con^any shall be fixed from time to time by the Moribers. Howevo, dectkin or appointment 
of an offico or agoit shall not of itself nor shall anything in this Agreement, create contrad rights. 

9.03. Resignation. Any offico may resign as such at any time. Such resignation shall be 
made in writing and shall take effed at the time specified thoein, or if no time be specified, at the 
time of its recdpt by the Members. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be no^essary to make it 
effedive, unless expressly so provided in the resignation. 

9.04. Removal Any offico may be removed as such, eitho with or without cause, by the 
Members whenevo in their jud^nent the best interests of the Company will be served therdiy, 
provided, howevo, that such removal shall be without prejudice to the contrad r ^ t s , if any, of the 
person so removed. 

ARTICLE X 
INDEMNIFICATION 

10.01 Right to Indemnification. Subjed to the limitations and conditions as provided in 
this Article, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is 
involved in any Proceeding, or any appeal in such a Proceeding, or any inquiry or investigatfon that 
could lead to such a Proceeding, by reason of the fiict that he or she, or a person of whom he or she is 
the legal representative, is or was a Membo of the Company or while a Membo of the Conqiany is or 
was serving at the request of the Coinpany as a director, offico, partno, venturo, proprietor, trustee, 
employee, agent, or similar fimctfonary of anotho fordgn or domestic limited liability conipany, 
corporation, partnership, joint venture, sole propridorship, trust, employee benefit plan or otho 
enterprise shall be ii^emnified by the Conq)any to the fiillest extent permitted by the TBOC, as the 
same exist or may hereafto be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent 
that such amoidmoit permits the Company to provide broado indoimification ri^s than said law 
permitted the Company to provide prior to such amoidmoit) against judgments, penalties (including 
excise and similar taxes and punitive damages), fines, settlemoits and reasonable ecpenses (including, 
without limitation, attorney's fees) actualfy incurred by such person in connection with such 
Proceeding, and indemnificatton undo this Artide shall continue as to a person who has ceased to 
serve in the capacity which initialfy entitled such person to indemnity hoeundo. The rights granted 
pursuant to this Article shall be deemed contract rights, and no amoidments, modificatton or repeal of 
this Article shall have the effect oflimiting or denying any such rights with respect to adions t^en or 
Proceeding arising prior to any such amendment, modification or repeal It is expressly 
acknowledged that the indemnification provided in this Article could involve indemnification for 

15 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 22 



negligence or undo theories of strid Uabihty. 

10.02 Advance Payment The right to tndemnificatton conferred in this Artide shall inchide 
the right to be paid or rdmbursed by the Conq>any the reasonable expoises incurred by a person of 
the type oititled to be indemnified undo paragrqih 10.01 of this Agreonoit who was, is or is 
threatoied to be made a named defendant or respondent in a Proceeding in advance of the final 
disposition of the Proceeding and without any ddomination as to the person's ultimate entitlement to 
indemnification; provided, howevo, that the payment of such expenses incurred by any sudi poson in 
advance of the final disposition of a Proceeding, shall be made onfy upon delivery to the Company of 
a written affirmation by such person of his or h o good iaith belief that he has md the standard of 
condud necessary for indemnification undo this Article and a writtoi undotaking, by or on behalf of 
such person, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be ddermined that such 
indemnified person is not entitled to be indemnified undo this Article or otherwise. 

10.03 Indemnification of Officers, Employees and Agents. The Company, by adoption of 
a resolution of the Members, may indonnify sund advance or reimburse expoises to an officer, 
employee or agent of the Company to the same extent and subject to the same oondittons undo which 
it may indemnify and advance expenses to Members undo this Article; and, the Company may 
indemnify and advance or reimburse expenses to persons who are not or were not officers, 
employees, or agents of the Conqmny but who are or were serving at the request of the Conqiany as a 
director, offico, partno, venturo, propridor, trustee, empbyee, agent or similar fimdionaiy of 
anotho foreign or domestic limited liability company, corporation, partnership, joint venture, sole 
propriOorship, trust, employee boiefit plan or olho entoprise against any liabilUy asserted against 
him and incurred by him in such a edacity or arising out of his status as such a person to the same 
extent that it may indemnify and advance expoises to Members undo this Article. 

10.04 Appearance as a Witness. Notwithstanding any otho provisbn ofthis Article, the 
Company may pay or reiniburse expoises incmred by a Menibo in connedion with his appearance as 
a witness or otho particqiatbn in a Proceeding at a tune when he is not a named defoidant or 
respondent in the Proceeding. 

10.05 Nonexclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnificatbn and the advancement and 
paymoit of eTqioises conferred in this Article shall not be exchish^e of any otho right which a 
Membo or otho person indotmified pursuant to paragraph 10.03 ofthis Agreemoit may have or 
hoeafto acquire tuido any law (common or statutory), provisbn of the Certificate of Formatbn or 
this Agreement, agreement, vote of disintoested Mohbos or otherwise. 

10.06 Insurance. The Conq)any may purchase and maintain insurance, at its expense, to 
protect itself and any person who is a Monbo or was serving as a ofGk:o, empbyee or agent of the 
Company or is or was serving at the request of the Company as a director, offico, partno, venturo, 
propriOor, trustee, employee, agent or similar fimdionary of anotho fordgn or domestic lunited 
liability company, corporatbn, partnoship, joint venture, sole proprietorship, trust, empbyeebenefit 
plan or otho enterprise against any expense, liability or bss, whdho or not the Coit9>any woukl have 
the powo to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or bss undo this Artide. 
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10.07 Member Notification. To the extoit required by law, any indemnification of or 
advance of expoises to a Membo in accordance with this Article shall be reported in writing to the 
Members with or before the notice or waivo of notice of the next Monbers' meeting or with or 
before the next submissbn to Monbers of a consent to adion without a meding and, in any case, 
within the twelve month period immediately following the date of the indemnification or advance. 

10.08 Savings Clause. If this Article or any portion hoeof shall be invaUdated on any 
ground by any court of compdent jurisdidbn, thoi the Company shall nevertheless indemnify and 
hold harmless each Membo or any otho person indemnified pursuant to this Article as to costs, 
charges, and expenses (including attorney's fees), judgmoits, fines and amounts paxl in settlement 
with resped to any adbn, suit or Proceeding, whdho dvil, criminal administrative or investigative 
to the full extent permitted by any applicable portion of this Article that shall not have been 
invalidated and to the fiillest extent permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE XI 
TAXES 

11.01 Tax Returns. The Mend>os shall cause to be prqiared and filed all necessary federal 
and state income tax rdums for the Company, including making the eledions described in paragrq)h 
11.02 ofthis Agreement. Each Membo shall furnish to tlra Monbers all pertinent information in its 
possessbn relating to Conqiany operations that is necessary to enable the Company's income tax 
returns to be prqiared and filed. 

11.02 Tax Elections. The Conqiany shall make the following elections on the appropriate 
tax rdurns: 

(a) to adopt the calendar year as the Company's fiscal year; 

(b) to adopt the cash method of accounting for keeping the Company's books and 
records; 

(c) if a distributbn of Con^any property as described in Sedion 734 of the Internal 
Revoiue Code occurs or if a transfo of a Membership Intoest as described in Section 743 of 
the Internal Revoiue Code occurs, on writtoi request of any Membo, to eled, pursuant to 
Sedion 754 of the Internal Revenue Code, to adjust the basis of Conqiany properties; 

(d) to elect to amortize the organizatbnal expoises of the Company and the startup 
expenditures of the Conqiany undo Sectbn 195 of the Internal Revenue Code ratably ovo a 
period of sbcty (60) months as permitted by Sectbn 709(b) of the Internal Revenue Cod^ and 

(e) any otho eledion the Members may deem appropriate and in the best intoest of 
the Members. 
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Eitho the Company or any Membo may make an eledion for the Company to be excluded fiom the 
a|>plication of the provisions of subchapto K of chapto 1 subtitle A of tiie Intonal Revenue Code or 
any similar provisbns of applicable state law. 

11.03 "Tax Matters Partner." A Simple Majority of the Members shall designate one 
Membo to be the "tax mattos partno" of the Company pursuant to Sectbn 6231(aX7) of the 
Intonal Revenue Code. Any Membo who is designated "tax matters partno" shaU take such action 
as may be necessary to cause each otho Membo to become a "notice partno" within the meaning of 
Sedion 6223 of the Internal Revenue Code. Any Menibo who is designated "tax matters partno" 
shall inform each otho Membo of aU significant matters that may come to its attoition in its capadty 
as "tax mattos partno" by giving notice thereof on or before the fifth Business Day afto becoming 
aware thereof and, within that time, shaD forward to each otho Moidio copies of all significant 
writtoi communicatbns it may receive in that capadty. Any Menibo who is designated "tax matters 
partno" may not take adion contonplated by Sedbn 6222 through 6232 of the Internal Revenue 
Code without the consent of a Simple Majority. 

ARTICLE Xn 
BOOKS, RECORDS, REPORTS, AND BANK ACCOUNTS 

12.01 Maintenance of Books. The Company shall keep books and records of accounts and 
shall keep minutes of the proceedings of its Members and eadi committee of the Members. The 
books of account for the Conqiany shaD be maintained on a cash basis in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement, excqit that the Capital Accounts of the Members shall be maintained in accordance 
with Artble IV ofthis Agreement. The caloidar year shall be the accounting year of the Company. 

12.02 Accounts. The Members shall establish and maintain one or more separate bank and 
investment accounts and arrangemoits for Company funds in the Con^any name with finandal 
institutions and firms that the Menibos determine. The Menibers may not commingle the Conqiany's 
funds with the fluids o f any Member, howevo, Conpany fimds may be invested in a manno the same 
as or similar to the Members' investmoit of their own fimds or investments by their Affiliates. 

ARTICLE XIII 
TRANSFERS 

13.01 Limited Right to Transfer. No Membo or Assignee shall make aiQ̂  Transfo-of all or 
any part of its Membership Intoest, whetho now owned or hoeafto acquired, except (a) with the 
unanimous consent of the Members; (b) as provided by Article XIV ofthis Agreement; (c) as a 
Defeulting Membo as provided by paragraph 15.01(f) ofthis Agreement; or (d) upon winding \xp or 
terminatbn, as provided by paragraph 16.03 ofthis Agreonoit. Any attempted Transfo by a person 
of an interest or right, or any part thoeo^ in or in resped of the Conqiany otho than as specifically 
provided by this Agreement shall be, and is herdiy declared, null and void ab initio. 

13.02 Ri^ t s of an Assignee. 
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(a) Unless and until an Assignee becomes a Substituted Member of the Conipany as 
provided in this Agreemoit, the Assignee shall be entitled only to (i) allocatbn of income, gain, bss, 
dedudion, credit, or similar items, and to receive distributions to which the assignor is entitled to the 
extent these items woe assigned, and (ii) reasonable uiformation or account of transadions of the 
Company and to make reasonable inspedion of the books and records of the Company. The 
Membership Intoest of the Assignee shall not be considoed in the voting requirements of the 
Company, and the Assignee shall have no right to participate in the opoatbns or management of the 
Company. 

(b) In the event that the Members make additional contributions to the Company 
which the Membership Intoest is hekl by an Assignee, the Assignor Membo and its Assignee shall be 
jointfy and sevoaUy liable for the corresponding contributbn in connection with the Membership 
Interest hekl by Assignee. If the Assignor Membo or Assignee does not make sudi contributbn in 
accordance with the provisions ofthis Agreemoit, then the Assignor Membo and Assignee shall be 
treated as being in Default. In the event that one or more new Membos are admitted into the 
Company, or one or more existing Monbers increase their Monboship Intoest, the Membership 
Intoest of the Assignee maybe correspoiKlingly reduced and no consent or ofhsr adion on the part 
of such Assignee shall be required. 

13.03 Legal Opinion. For the right of a Monbo to transfo a Monboship Intoest or any 
part thoeof or of any Person to be admitted to the Company in connection thoewith to exist or be 
exercised, the CompaiQ^ must recdve an opinion from legal counsel acceptable to the Members that 
states (a) the Transfo is exempt fit>m registration undo fedoal and state securities laws, (b) the 
Transfo will not cause the Coinpany to be in vblatbn of fedoal and state securities laws, (c) the 
Transfo will not adversely affed the status of the Company as a partnership undo the Internal 
Revoiue Code or Treasury Regulations, and (d) the Transfer will not result in the Company's being 
considoed to have terminated within the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code or Treasury 
Regulations. The Monbers, howevo, may waive the requirements ofthis paragraph. 

13.04 Admission as Substituted Member. An Assignee has the right to be admitted to the 
Company as a Substituted Membo with the Pocoitage Intoest and the Capital Commitment so 
transferred to such person, in the event that: 

(a) the Membo making such Transfo grants the Assignee the right to be so admitted; 

(b) such Transfo is consented to in accordance with paragraph 13.01 of this 
Agreement; and 

(c) a writtoi, signed and dated instrument evidoicing the Transfo has been filed with 
the Coinpany in form and substance reasonably satis&ctory to the Members, and said 
instrument contains (i) the agreement by the Assignee to be bound by all of the terms and 
provisions ofthis Agreemoit, (ii) any necessary or advisable representations and warranties, 
including that the Transfo was made in accordance with all applicable laws, regulatbns, and 
securities laws, (iii) the Percoitage Interests and the Capital Commitmoits afto the Transfo 
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of the Monbo effecting the Transfo and the person to which the Membership Intoest of part 
thoeof is transferred (which togdho must total the Pocentage Interest and the Coital 
Commitment of the Membo effecting the Transfo before the Ti^nsfo) and (iv) the name, 
address and any otho pertinent information necessary for amoided Exhibit A and to make 
distributions. 

13.05 Transfer to Existing Monber. In the event ofa Transfo to an existing Monbo, the 
existing Monbo shall be automaticaOy deoned to be a Substituted Membo. 

13.06 Third Party Offer. In the event a Menibo desires to sdl all or any portbn of its 
Membership Intoest to anotho poson (otho than an existing Menibo), tl» selling Moiibo shall first 
offo to sell the Menibership Intoest to the otho existing Members. Upon the recdpt of an offo 
from a Third Party to purchase such Membership Intoest, the selling Membo shall pronptfy delivo a 
copy of the Third Party offo to all otho Members. Each Mendio will have fifteoi (15) days from the 
date of recdpt of the Third Party offo to notify the selling Menibo in writing that the otho Membo 
intoids to purchase the Moiibership Intoest upon the terms and conditions of the Third Party offo. 
If more than one otho Menibo desires to purchase the Membership Intoest, each of the purchasing 
Members shall purchase a portion of the Monboship Intoest that is proportional to that Membo's 
Pocentage Interest. If none of the otho Members give notification within fifteen (15) days of an 
intentbn to purchase the Membership Interest, then the selling Membo shall be permitted to sell the 
Membership Intaest to the Third Party upon the terms and conditbns of the Third Party offo. 

13.07 Reasonable Expenses. The Membo effeding a Transfo and the Substituted Membo 
shall pay, or reimburse the Coinpany for, all costs incurred by the Con^any in connedbn with the 
admissbn of the Substituted Monbo (including, without timitatbn, the legal fees incurred ui 
connectbn with the legal opinbns referred to in paragr^h 13.03 ofthis Agreement) on or before the 
tenth (10th) day afto the recdpt by that person of the Company's invoice for the amount due. If 
payment is not made by the date due, the person owing the amount shall pay intoest on the unpaid 
amount from the date due xmtil paid at a rate p o annum equal to the Defeult Intoest Rate. 

ARTICLE XIV 
BUYOUT OF MEMBERSHIP INTEREST 

14.01 Termination of Marital Relationship. 

(a) If the marital relationship ofa Membo is terminated by death or divorce and such 
Membo does not succeed to all of such Monber's spouse's community or separate intoest, if any, in 
the Monbershq) Intoest (such spouse is referred to hoeafto in this Article as the "Assignee 
Spouse"), eitho as outright owno of sudi Membership Intoest or as a trustee ofa trust hoklingsuch 
Menibership Intoest, whetho or not such Membo is a beneficiary of such trust, then sudi Monbo 
shall have the option to purchase at Fair Value (ddomined as of the date of the death or divorce of 
the Menibo) the Assignee Spouse's intoest in the Membership Intoest to which such Monbo does 
not succeed. Such optbn must be exercised within ninety (90) days afto the death of or the 
Monber's divorce from the Assignee Spouse. Should the Menibo fail to exodse such option within 

20 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 27 



sudi 90-day period, then the Conqiany shall have the option to purchase such Membership Intoest at 
Fair Vahie for a period of ninety (90) days afto tlw lapse of the initial 90-day poiod. 

(b) Any Membership Interest o f the Company held by a Membo as a trustee ofa trust 
as a result of the death of or the Mend>o's divorce fljom the Assignee Spouse shall be treated as 
owned by such Membo for purposes ofthis agreement. If such Membo ceases to act as trustee of 
sudi trust for any reason, then such Membo shall have the option to purchase all of the Monbershqi 
Intoest at Fair Vahie hekl in such trust. Such option must be exodsed within ninety (90) days afto 
such Menbo ceases to act as trustee of such trust. Should such Menibo M to exodse such option 
within sudi 90-day period, then the Company shall have the option to purchase such Monbership 
Intoest for a period of ninety (90) days afto the lapse of the initial 90-day period. 

14.02 Death of Member. Commoicing upon the death ofa Membo, the surviving Monbers 
shall for a period of ninety (90) days have the option to purchase all or any portbn of the deceased 
Membo's Membership Interest at Fair Value (ddermined as of the date of the death of the Menbo); 
provided, howevo, the exodse of said option shall require the approval of the unanimous consent of 
the surviving Monbers. Upon the expiratbn of ninety (90) days afto the death ofa Menibo, the 
Conqiany shall be obligated to purchase aU, and not less than aU, of the deceased Membo's 
Monbership Interest at Fair Value which the surviving Members do not elect to purchase pursuant to 
the option granted in the preceding soitence. The Assignee (which may include spouse and executors 
or administrators of the deceased Membo) shall sell all of the deceased Membo's Menbershq} 
Intoest to the Compaiiy and/or the otho Members in accordance with the option or obligatbn 
established by this paragraph. 

14.03 Bankruptcy of Member. Ifany Monbo becomes a Bankrupt Membo, the Conpany 
shall have the option, ^cerdsable by notice from the Members to the Bankrupt Membo (or its 
represoitative) at anytime prbr to the one hundred dghtidh (180th) day afto recdpt of notice of the 
occurrence of the event causing it to becon:^ a Bankrupt Membo, to purchase all or any portion of 
the Bankrupt Mendier's Menbershqi Intoest at Fair Value (ddermined as of the date that notice of 
the exodse of such option is given by the Membos); provided, howevo, the exercise of said optbn 
shall require the approval of the unanimous consent of the otho Membos. In the event that notice of 
the exodse of such optbn is given by the Membos to the Bankrupt Monbo (or its represoitative), 
the Bankrupt Membo shall seO its interest to the Conqiany as provided by this Artide. 

14.04 Insttffident Surplus. If the Company shall not have sufficioit surplus to permit it 
lawfulfy to purdiase the Monboship Intoest undo paragr^h 14.01, 14.02 or 14.03 of this 
Agreement at the time of the cbsing, the otho Members may take such adion to vote thdr respedive 
Monbership Intoests to reduce the capital of the Conq)any or to take such otho steps as may be 
appropriate or necessary in ordo to oiable the Company lawfiiUy to purdiase such Membership 
Intoest. 

14.05 Option by Other Members. Ifthe Company feils or declines to exodse an optbn to 
purchase a Membership Intoest ofa Monbo as provided by this Agreement within the period oftime 
spedfied for such optbn, then the otho Menibos shall have the option for a period of ninety (90) 

21 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 28 



days thoeafto to purchase sudi Membership Intoest in sudi proportions as they mutualfy agree or in 
proportion to thdr respedive Pocoitage Intoests for the same price and upon the same terms 
available to the Company. 

14.06 Exerdse of Option. Any optbn to purdiase a Membership Intoest as provided by 
this ̂ reemoit shall be deemed exodsed at the time the purdiasing party delivos to the seDing party 
writtoi notice of intoit to exocise such optbn abng with an initial paymoit in the form ofa certified 
or cashier's check in the amoimt often pocent (10%) of the estimated purdiase price anticqiated by 
the purchaso, in person or by United States registered mail propofy stamped and addressed to \hs 
last known address of the selling party. 

14.07 Determination of Fair Value. The "Fair Vahie" ofa Membersh^ Interest shall be the 
amount that would be distributable to the Menbo holding such intoest in the event that the assds of 
the Company woe sold for cash and the proceeds, nd of liabilities, woe distributed to the holders of 
all Membership Interests pursuant to thK Agreemoit. In the event that the Fair Value of a 
Memboship Interest is to be ddermined undo this Agreement, the Membos shall select a qualified 
independent appraiso to make sudi determination, and the Menbers shall make the books and 
records available to the appraiso for such purpose. The determination of Fair Value made by such 
appraiso shall be final, conclusive, and binding on the Conqiany, all Monbers, and all Assignees ofa 
Membershq) Intoest. 

14.08 Fees and Expenses of Appraiser. In the case ofa purchase and sale of Membership 
Intoest undo paragraph 14.01 or 14.02 ofthis Agreement (in the event of death or divorce ofa 
Membo), the fees and expenses of such appraiso shall be paid by the Conqiany. In the case of a 
purchase and sale of Membership Intoest undo paragraph 14.03 or 15.01 (in the event of the 
bankruptcy or default of a Monbo), the fees and expenses of such appraiso shall be paid by the 
Bankrupt Membo or DefeuUing Membo, by deducting at cbsing such fees and expenses from the 
purchase price to be paid to such Bankrupt Menibo or De&ulting Membo, and remitting the same to 
the Company. Otherwise, the fees and expenses of such appraiso shall be shared equally by the 
purchaso and sello. 

14.09 Right to Withdraw Option. In the event that a Menbo has exodsed an election to 
purchase a Meihboship Intoest undo this Agreemoit and Fair Value has been ddermined as 
provided by paragraph 14.07 ofthis Agreonent, such Menibo may eled to terminate its right to 
purchase within fifteoi (15) days folbwing its recdpt of the dderminatbn ofFair Value, by detivery 
of written notice to the Company and to the Assignee. In such an event, the initial payment shall be 
rdumed to the Menibo withdrawing the option, and the otho Members may eled to purchase the 
Monbershq) Interest (or portbn thoeoQ in such proportbns as they mutualfy agree or in proportbn 
to thdr respective Pocentage Intoests. 

14.10 Terms of Purchase. 

(a) The closing date for any sale and purchase made pursuant to this Artble shaU be 
the lato of (i) sixty (60) days afto the notice of the exocise of optbn has beoi received by the selling 
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party, or (ii) thirty (30) days afto the parties have received notice of the Fair Vahie of the 
Membership Interest. 

(b) Payment of the purdiase price for a Monbership Intoest may be made by the 
Company and/or the otho Monbers as folfows: (i) a down paymoit equal to ten percent (10%) of 
the Fair Value to be made at cbsing, and (ii) the balance of the purchase price, bearing intoest at the 
Genoal Intoest Rate ddermined on the date of cbsing, to be paid in twenty-four (24) equal monthfy 
installments, with the first payment due thirty (30) days afto the date of closing. Any such purchaso 
shall have the right to pay all or any part of such obligatbn at any time or times in advance of 
maturity without penalty. In the event that the Company becomes a party to a Fundamental Busmess 
Transadion, such obligatbn (or remaining portion thoeof) shall be paid m fiiU withm thirty (30) days 
of the date that the Company becomes a party to sudi transadbn. 

(c) At the cbsing, the person selling the Membership Interest will transfo the 
Monbership Intoest free and clear of any hois or encumbrances, otho than those which may have 
been created to secure any indditedness or obligations of the Coinpany. 

(d) In each event that a Membership Intoest m the Company is purchased as described 
in this Agreement, upon the execution and delivoy of the notes or payment of the cash as required 
hodn, this Agreement shall opoate as an automatic transfo to tl^ purdiaso of the Meniboship 
Intoest in the Coinpany. The paymoit to be made to the selling Membo, Assignee, or its 
represoitative shall constitute complde release, Uquidation and satisfedion of aQ the rights and 
interest of the selling Membo, Assignee, or its representative (and of all persons claiming by, 
through, or undo the selling Monbo, Assignee, or its represoitative) in and in respect of the 
Coii^any, including, without limitation, any Memboship Intoest, any rights in spedfic Con^any 
property, and any rights against the Company and (insofer as the afEaars of the Company are 
conconed) against the Mendiers. The parties shall perform such adions and execute sudi documents 
that may be reasonabfy necessary to effectuate and evklence such purchase and sale, and release as 
provided by this paragraph. 

14.11. Insurance. The Conipany mtoids (but is not required) to acquire and become the 
owno and beneficiary of certain life insurance polides insuring the respedive lives of the Monbers. 
The folbwing provisbns shall appfy to the any insurance polbies owned by the Company. 

(a) Payment of Pronhims. The Conqiany shall pay premiums on the foregoing 
insurance polides and shall give proof of payment of the premiums to the Monbers whenevo any of 
them so request such proof If a premiimi is not paid withm 10 days afto its due date, the insured 
shall have the right to pay such pronhim and shall be rdnbursed therefor by the Con:q>any. 

(b) Additbnal Insurance Polides. The Company and/or the otho Members shaU have 
the right to purchase additbnal insurance on the lives of any of the Members and such additional 
policies shaU be listed on a schedub and attached hereto and made a part ofthis Agreement, togdho 
with any substitution or withdrawal of the life insurance policies refored to above. In the event that 
the Company and/or the otho Membos deckle to purchase additbnal life insurance on any Membo, 
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such Monbo shall coopoate fully by pofonning all of the requo-onoits reasonably imposed by the 
insurance company as necessary conditions precedent to the issuance of such additional life insurance 
policies. 

(c) Ownership of Policies and Right to Purchase. The Company and/or the otho 
Members acquiring a policy on the otho Members shall be the sole owno of the poUcies and shall 
^pty any dividoid received in respect of the policies to the payment of premiums thodn. If any 
Membo disposes of all of his Membership Interest during his lifetime or if this Agreement terminates 
as to any Monbo before the death of sudi Membo, then such Membo sh^ have the right to 
purchase the policy or polides on his life owned by the Conqiany and/or the otho Monbers by paying 
to the owners of the policy cash in an amount equal to the cash surrendo value thoeof plus any 
unearned premhim as of the date of transfo less any existing indd>tedness diaiged against sudi policy 
or polides. The right of any Menibo to purchase such insurance polides shall lapse if not exodsed 
within 30 days afto such dispositbn or termination and thoeafto the Company and/or the otho 
Menbers may cancel such polides. Notwithstanding the provisions ofthis Agreement, any life 
insurance conqiany which has issued a policy of life insurance subjed to the provisbns of this 
Agreement, is hoeby authorized to act m accordance with the terms of such policies as if this 
Agreement did not exist and the payment or otho performance of its contractual obUgatbns by any 
such insurance con^any in accordance with the terms of its policy or policies shall comptetely 
discdiarge such insurance company fiom all claims, suits or demands of all persons whomsoevo. 

(d) Right to Proceeds. All proceeds fiom any policy owned by the Company shall be 
the property of the Conqiany. In the event proceeds from any policy exceed the purchase price as sd 
forth in Sedion 14.10 above, such excess will be the property of the Company and the Company has 
no obligatbn to pay such excess ovo to the estate of the deceased Menbo. 

ARTICLE XV 
DEFAULT OF A MEMBER 

15.01 Failure to Contribute. If a Membo does not contribute by the time required all or 
any portion ofa Capital Contribution that Menibo is required to make as provkied in this Agreement, 
the Company may exocise, on notice to that Monbo (the "Defeulting Menibo"), one or more of the 
following remedies: 

(a) taking sach actbn (including, without limitatbn, court proceedings) as the 
Monbers may deon appropriate to obtain payment by the Defaulting Menibo of the portion 
of the Defe.ulting Meniber's Capital Contribution thai is in defeult, togetho with interest 
thoeon at the Defauk Intoest Rate fixim the date that the Capital Contribution was due until 
the date that it is made, all at the cost and expense of the Defeulting Member; 

(b) permitting the otho Monbers in proportion to their Percentage Interests or in such 
otho pocentages as they may agree (the "Lendmg Membo," whdho one or more), to 
advance the portion of the Defaulting Meihber's Coital Contributbn that is m defeult, with 

24 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 31 



the following results: 

(i) the sum advanced constitutes a ban fiom the Lending Membo to the 
Defaulting Membo and a Capital Contribution of that sum to the Company by the 
De&ulting Menibo pursuant to the applicable provisions ofthis Agreement, 

(ii) the prindpal balance of the loan and all accrued unpaid interest thoeon is 
due and payable in whole on the tenth (10th) day afto written demand thoefor by the 
Loiding Membo to the Defaulting Membo, 

(iii) the amount lent bears interest at the De&ult Interest Rate fixim the day 
that the advance is deemed made until the date that the ban, togetho with all intoest 
accrued on it, is repab to the Lending Menbo, 

(iv) all distributions fiom the Company that otherwise wouM be made to the 
Defeulting Menibo (whetho before or afto termination of the Company) instead 
shall be paid to the Lending Membo until the loan and aU intoest accrued on it have 
been paid in fiill to the Lending Membo (with payments being applied first to accrued 
and unpakl intoest and then to principal), 

(v) the payment of the loan and intoest accrued on it is secured by a security 
intoest in the De&ulting Moiibo's Metcbership Intoest, as more fiiUy set forth in 
paragraph 15.02 ofthis Agreement, and 

(vi) the Lending Menibo has the right, in addition to the otho rights and 
remedies granted to it pursuant to this Agreement or available to it at law or in equity, 
to take any adion (including, without limitation, court proceedings) that the Lending 
Menibo may deem appropriate to o b t ^ payment by the De&ulting Monbo of the 
ban and all accrued and unpaid intoest on it, at the cost and expense of the 
Defaulting Member; 

(c) exocising the rights ofa secured party undo the Uniform Commodal Code of the 
State ofTexas; 

(d) reducing the Defeulting Membo's Membership Intoest or otho intoest in the 
Company, 

(e) subordination of the Defeuking Member's Membership Intoest to the 
nondefaulting Member, 

(f) a forced sale of the Defaulting Monber's Membershqi Intoest at Fair Value and 
upon the terms of purchase as provided in Article XIV; 

(g) forfdture of the De&ulting Mohbo's Monbership Intoest; or 
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(h) oeocising any otho rights and remedies available at law or in equity. 

15.02 Security. Each Membo grants to the Company, and to each Lending Membo with 
respect to any bans made by the Lending Membo to that Moibo as a De&ulting Menibo undo this 
Article, as security, equaUy and ratably, for the payment of all Capital Contributions that Moibo las 
agreed to make and the paymoit of all bans and interest accrued on them made by Lending Menbers 
to that Moiibo as a Defeulting Membo pursuant to paragraph 15.01 (b) ofthis Agreonoit, a security 
intoest in, and a general lioi on its Menibership Interest and the proceeds thereof aU undo the 
Uniform Commodal Code of the State ofTexas. It is expressly agreed that the security interest 
created thereby shaU be governed by Chapto 8 of the Uniform Commodal Code of the State of 
T^cas. On any default in the paymoit ofa Capital Contributbn or in the paymoit of such a ban or 
intoest accrued on it, the Conipany or the Lending Monbo, as applicable, is entitled to aU the rights 
and remedies ofa secured party undo the Uniform Commodal Code of the State ofTexas with 
resped to the security intoest granted in this Article. Each Menibo shall ̂ cecute and delivo to the 
Company and the otho Monbers all financing statements and otho instruments that the Monbers or 
the Lending Menbo, as applicable, may request to effectuate and carry out the preceding provisbns 
ofthis Article. At the optbn of the Monbers or a Loiding Monbo, tlus Agreement or a carbon, 
photographic, or otho copy hereof may serve as a financing statement. 

15.03 Conqpromise or Release. The obligation of a Defeulting Membo or its legal 
representative or successor to make a contributbn or otherwise pay cash or transfer property or to 
return cash or property paid or distributed to the De& ûhing Menibo in violatbn of the TBOC or this 
Agreonoit may be compromised or released onfy with the approval of the unanimous consent of the 
otho Menbers. Notwithstanding the compromise or release, a oeditor of the Conpany who extends 
credit or otherwise ads in reasonabb reliance on that obligation, afto the Membo signs a writing 
that reflects the obligation and before the writing is amended or canceled to refled the conpromise or 
release, may enforce the original obligatbn. 

15.04 Expulsion. A Menbo may be expelled from the Company by unanimous vote of all 
otho Members (not including the Meihbo to be expelled) if that Membo (a) has willfiiUy violated 
any provisbn ofthis Agreonoit; (b) committed fiuud, theft:, or gross negligence against the Conpany 
or one or more Members of the Company, or (c) oigaged in wrongfiil condud that adversely and 
materiaOy affects the business or opoatbn of the Company. Such a Moiibo shall be considoed a 
Defaulting Membo, and the Company or otho Menbers may also exocise any one or more of the 
remedies provkied for in Article 15.01. The Conqiany may of&et any damages to the Conpany or its 
Members occasbned by the miscondud of the expeUed Membo against any amounts distributabb or 
otherwise paj^le by the Conipany to the expelled Menibo. 

ARTICLE XVI 
WINDING UP AND TERMINATION 

16.01 Event Requiring Termination. Tte Company shaUbegm to wind up its af&irs upon 
the first of the following to occur: 

26 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 33 



(a) the executbn of an instrument approving the termination of the Company by 
unanimous consent of the Members; 

(b) the occuiTOice of any event that terminates the continued n^mbership of the last 
remainmg Membo of the Company; provided, howevo, that the Company is not dissolved iS, 
no lato than ninety (90) days afto tiie terminatbn of the monbership of the last remaining 
Membo, the legal representative or successor of the last remaining Monbo agrees to cancel 
the event requiring winding up, to continue the Company and to become a Membo, or to 
designate anotho person who agrees to become a Menbo, as of the date of termination of 
the membership of the last ronaining Member; 

(c) oitiy ofa decree ofjudidal dissolutbn of the Company; 

(d) the occurrence of a nonwaivable evoit undo the teims of the TBOC which 
requires the Company to be terminated; or 

(e) by the ad ofa Single Majority of the Members, if no capital has been pab into the 
Company, and the Company has not otherwise commenced business. 

16.02 Business May Be Continued. Except as provided in paragraph 16.01(b) ofthis 
Agreement: 

(a) an event that requires the winding up of the Company's business shaUnot terminate 
the Conqiany i1̂  no lato than one year afto the date of the evoit, the Members unanimousfy 
consent to cancel the event requiring winding up. 

(b) the expiratbn of a period of duration that requires the winding up of the 
Company's business shall not tominate the Company i1̂  no lato than three years afto thedate 
the period of duratbn expires, the Moiibos unanimously consoit to amoid the Company's 
Certificate of Formatbn and this Agreonoit to extoid the Company's period of duratbn. 

16.03 Purchase of Former Member's Membership Interest Upon an event requiring 
winding up as provided in 16.01 ofthis Agreement, tt» Conqianys books shaU be cbsed upon the 
date of such event, so as to ddomine the Foimo Monber's Monboship Intoest value on the date 
ending all of the Foimo Membo's finandal intoest in tt^ Company. Within one hundred eighty 
(180) days of such event, the Company shall purdiase the Foimo Mohbo's Membership Intoest at 
Fair Value (as ddermined by paragraph 14.07 of this Agreemoit), upon terms of purchase as 
provided in Article XFV of tins Agreement. 

16.04 Liquidation. As soon as possible following an event requiring terminatbn of the 
Conqiany, the Members shall ad as hquidator or may appoint one or more Members as liquidator. 
The liquidator shaU proceed dihgentfy to wind up the affairs of the Company and make final 
distributions as provided hoein and in the TBOC. The costs of fiqiudation shall be borne as a 
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Company expense. Until final distribution, the liquidator shall continue to operate the Company 
properties with aU of the powo and authority of the Monbers. The steps to be accomplished by the 
liquidator are as folbws: 

(a) as pronptly as possible afto such event and agam afto final liqubatbn, the liquidator shall 
cause a propo accounting to be made by a recognized firm of certified public accountants of the 
Company's assets, liabUities, and operations through the last day of the calendar month in which the 
temunatbn occurs or the final Ikjuidation is completed, as applicable; 

(b) the liquidator shall cause the notbe described in Sedbn 11.052 of the TBOC to be 
delivoed to each known claimant against the Company, 

(c) the liquidator shall pay, satisfy or discharge from Company AUKIS aO of the debts, liabilities 
and obligations of the Company (including, without limitation, all expoises incurred in liquidatbn and 
any advances described in paragraph 4.04 ofthis Agreemoit) or otherwise make adequate provision 
for paymoit and discharge thereof (including, without limitation, the establishment ofa cash escrow 
fund for contingoit liabilities in such amount and for such term as the liquidator may reasonably 
ddermine); and 

(d) all remaining assets of the Conpany shall be distributed to the Members as foUows: 

(i) the liquidator may sell any or aU Conpany property, including to Membos, 
and any resulting gaki or bss fixim each sale shaU be computed and albcated to the 
Capital Accounts of the Menbers; 

(ii) with respect to aU Company property that has not been sob, the fair 
markd value of that property shall be detommed and the Capital Accounts of the 
Menbers shaU be adjusted to refled the manno in which the unrealized income, gain, 
loss, and dedudion inhoent in property that has not been refleded in the Capital 
Accounts prevbusly would be albcated among the Menibers if thoe were a taxable 
dispositbn of that property for the feir maikd value of that property on the date of 
distribution; and 

(iii) Company property shaUbe distributed among the Membos in accordance 
with the positive Capital Account balances of the Members, as ddeimined afto takii^ 
into account all Capital Account adjustmoits for the taxable year of the Company 
during which the Uqtiidatbn of the company occurs (otho than those made by reason 
ofthis clause (iii)); and those distributions shaU be made by the end of the taxabte year 
of the Conpany during which the liquidation of the Conpany occurs (or, if lato, 
ninety (90) days afto the date of liquklation). 

AU distributions in kmd to the Membos shaU be made subject to the liability of each distributee for 
costs, expenses, and liabilities therdofore incuired or for which the Company has committed jnbr to 
the date of termination and those costs, expenses, and Uabilities shaUbe aUocated to the distributee 

28 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 35 



pursuant to this paragraph Upon conpldbn of aU distributions to the Membo, such distributbn 
shaU constitute a complde return to the Moiibo of its Capital Contributbns and release aU claims 
against the Company. To the extent that a Monbo returns fimds to the Company, it has no claim 
against any otho Moiibo for those fimds. 

16.05 Defidt Capital Accounts. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 
Agreement, and notwithstandmg any custom or rule of law to the contrary, to the extent that the 
deficit, if any, in the Capital Account of any Membo results from or is attributable to deductbns and 
losses of the Conpany (including non-cash items such as depreciatbn), or distributions of money 
pursuant to this Agreement to aU Members in proportion to t l ^ respective Percentage Intoests, 
upon terminatbn of the Company such defidt shall not be an assd of the Company and sucdi 
Membos shall not be obligated to contribute such amount to the Company to bring the balance of 
such Meniber's Capital Account to zoo. 

16.06 Certificate of Termination. On compldionoftf^ distributbn ofCompanyassOs as 
provided herein, the Company is terminated, and the Monbers (or such otho poson or persons as the 
TBOC may require or permit) shall execute, acknowledge and cause to be filed a Certificate of 
Terminatbn, at which time the Conpany shall cease to exist as a limited liability company. 

ARTICLE XVII 
AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION 

17.01 Amendment or Modification. This Agreemoit may be amoided or modified from 
time to time only witii a written instrumoit executed with the imanimous consent of the Members. 

17.02 Special Provisions for Certain Amendments or Modifications. 

(a) An amendment or modification reducing a Membo's Percentage Interest or 
increasing its Capital Commitment (otho than to reflect changes otherwise provided by this 
Agreement) is effective onfy with that Membo's consoit. 

(b) An amoidment or modification reducing the required Percentage Intoest or otho 
measure for any consoit or vote in this Agreement is effedive only with the consent or vote of 
Members having the Pocentage Intoest or otho measure theretofore required. 

(c) An amendment to establish the relative rights and prefooices of the Membership 
Intoests of any class or series may be made by a committee of Menibers, within the authority of 
Moiibers or othowise provided m the Certificate of Formatbn, the TBOC, or resohitions by 
Membos forming the committee. 

(d) An amoidment or modifkration made solefy to refled the admission or withdrawal 
ofa Membo (sucA as to Exhibit A) need not be approved by any Membo if the requirements sd 
forth m this Agreonent with respect to the admission or withdrawal of the Membo are otherwise 
satisfied. 
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ARTICLE XVra 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

18.01 Construction. Whenevo the context requires, the gendo of aU words used in this 
Agreemoit includes the mascahne, feminine, and neuto. In the evoit thoe is only one Membo, then 
references to Members in the plural shoukl be construed as singular. 

18.02 Offset. Whenevo the Conpany is to pay any sum to any Membo, any anxiunts that 
Membo owes the Company may be deduded fiom tiiat sum before payment. 

18.03 Notices. Except as expressly sd forth to the contrary in this Agreonoit, aU notbes, 
requests, or consents provided for or permitted to be given undo this Agreement must be in writing 
and must be given dtho by depositing that writing in the United States mail, addressed to the 
redpioit, postage paid, and roistered or certified with rdum recdpt requested or by delivering that 
writing to the redpioit in person, by courio, or by facsimile transmission; and a notice, request, or 
consoit given undo this Agreement is effective on recdpt by the person. AU notices, requests, and 
consents to be sent to a Membo must be sent to or made at the addresses given for that Membo on 
Exhibit A or such otho address as that Membo may specify by notice to the otho Members. Any 
notice, request, or consent to the Conpany or the Members must be given to the Menibers at the 
foUowing address: 

310 W. Wall Stred, Suite 500 
Mklland, Texas 79701 

Whoievo any notice is required to be givoi by law, the Certificate of Formation or this Agreement, a 
written waivo thoeof signed by the person entitled to notice, whetho before or afto the time stated 
thoein, shaU be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. 

18.04 Entire Agreement; Supersedes Other Agreements. This Agreonent includes the 
entire agreement of the Members and their AffiUates relating to the Conpany and supersedes all prior 
contracts or agreonoits with respect to the Conpany, whetho oral or writtoi. 

18.05 Effect of Waiver or Consent. A waivo or consoit, express or implied, to or of any 
breach or de&ult by any person in tl» performance by that person of its obligations with respect to 
the Company is not a consent or waivo to or of any otho breach or de&uk in the performance by 
that poson of the same or any otho obligatbns of that person with respect to the Conpany. Failure 
on the part ofa poson to complain of any act of any person or to declare any person in deftiult with 
resped to the Coinpany, irrespective ofhow bng that Mure continues, does not constitute a wah^o 
by that person of its rights with resped to that de&uh until the applicable statute-o^Umitatbns perbd 
has run. 

18.06 Binding Effed. Subject to the restridions on Transfers sd forth m this Agreement, 
this Agreement is binding on and inure to the benefit of the Monbers and their respedive heirs, legal 
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representatives, successors, and assigns. Howevo, unless and until propoly admitted as a Membo, 
no Assignee wiU have any rights ofa Membo beyond those providol expressly sd forth in this 
Agreement or granted by the TBOC to assignees. 

18.07 GovendngLaw. THIS AGREEMENT IS GOVERNED BY AND SHALL BE 
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAW OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, EXCLUDING 
ANY CONFLICT-OF-LAWS RULE OR PRINCIPLE THAT MIGHT REFER THE 
GOVERNANCE OR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS AGREEMENT TO THE LAW OF 
ANOTHER JURISDICTION. 

18.08 Severability. If any provision ofthis Agreemoit or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid or unenforceabb to any extoit, the remaindo of this 
Agreement and the application of that provision to otho persons or circumstances is not affected 
thereby and that provisbn shall be enforced to the greatest extent peimitted by law. 

18.09 Further Assurances. In connection with this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby, each Membo shall execute and delivo any additbnal documents and 
instruments and perform any additbnal acts that may be necessary or appropriate to effeduate and 
perform the provisions ofthis Agreonoit and those transadions. 

18.10 Waiver of Certain Rights. Eac^ Monbo irrevocabfywaives any right it m ^ have to 
maintain any adbn for dissolution of the Company or for partition of the propoty of the Conpany. 

18.11 Indemnification. To the fiiUest extent permitted by law, each Menibo shaU indemnify 
the Company, eacdi otho Membo and hob thon harmless fiom and against all bsses, costs, 
liabilities, damages, and expoises (including, without timitation, costs of suit and attorney's fees) they 
may incur on account of any breach by that Membo ofthis Agreement. 

18.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any numbo of counterparts with 
the same effect as if all signing parties had signed the same instirument. 

ARTICLE XIX 
NOTICES AND DISCLOSURES 

19.01 CompUancewithRegnlationDoftheSecnritiesActofl933. THEOWNERSHIP 
INTERESTS THAT ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS COMPANY AGREEMENT HAVE NOT 
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR ANY 
STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE INTERESTS MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, 
PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED, OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNTIL THE HOLDER 
THEREOF PROVIDES EVIDENCE SATISFACTORY TO THE MEMBERS (WHICH, IN THE 
DISCRETION OF THE MEMBERS, MAY INCLUDE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL) THAT 
SUCH OFFER, SALE, PLEDGE, TRANSFER, OR OTHER DISPOSITION WILL NOT 
VIOLATE APPLICABLE FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE OWNERSHIP 
INTERESTS THAT ARE THE SUBJECT OF THIS COMPANY AGREEMENT ARE SUBJECT 
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TO RESTRICTIONS ON THE SALE, PLEDGE, TRANSFER, OR OTHER DISPOSITION AS 
SET FORTH IN THIS COMPANY AGREEMENT. 

19.02 Notice to Members. By executing this Agreement, eadi Membo acknowledges that k 
has adual notice of all of the provisbns of this Agreemoit, including, without limitation, the 
restrictions on the transfo of Membership Intoests set forth m this Agreemoit, and aU of the 
provisions of the Certificate of Formatbn. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, each 
Membo hoeby agrees that this Agreemoit constitutes adequate notice of any notice requiremoit 
undo Chapto 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code, and each Membo hoeby waives any requironent 
that any fintho notice thoeuiulo be given. 

19.03 Limitation of Liability. Pursuant to Artble 581-1 etseq. of the Texas Revised Civil 
Statutes (the "Texas Securities Ad'O, the liabiUty undo the Texas Securities Act of a lawyo, 
accountant, consultant, the firm of any of the foregoing, and any otho person engaged to provide 
services relating to an offering of securities of the Company ("Service Providers") is limited to a 
maximum of three times the fee paid by the Company or sello of the Company's securities, unless the 
trio of fed finds that such Sovice Provido oigaged in intentional wrongdoing m providkig the 
services. By executing this Agreement, each Meiribo l^reby acknowledges the disclosure contained 
in this paragraph. 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Members have executed this Company Agreement, as of tiie 
Effective Date. 

MEMB 

John Bic 

Date si ted: /Q-j-Tl^O 

P&draig 

Date 
[THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY] 

^draigEnnis 

Date signed: [ O j U Z O f O 

32 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 39 



EXHIBIT A 
MEMBERS OF Priority Power Mana2ement LLC 

Initial Capital Capital Percentage 
Member's Name and Address Contribution Commitment Interest 

John Bick $0 $0 50% 

_, Texas 

Padraig Ennis $0 $0 50% 

_, Texas 
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EXHIBFTA 
MEMBERS OF Priority Power Management LLC 

Initial Capital Capital Percentage 
Member's Name and Address Contribution Commitment Interest 

John Bick $0 $0 50% 
1409 Crowley Rd 
Arlington,TX 76012 

Padraig Ennis JQ JQ 50„/^ 
2821 Marmon 
Midland, TX 79705 
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CHANGE OF REGISTERED AGENT 
AND CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE BY 

PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 
A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

Entity Information 

1. The name of the entity is Priority Powo Management, LLC, which is a Texas Umited 
liability conpany. 

2. The file nunibo issued to the filing entity by the seodaiy of state is 0800912669. 

3. The registered agoit and registoed office of the entity as cutroitly shown in the 
records of the seodary of state are Kris Olivo, 303 W. WaU Street, Suite 1700, Mbland, Texas, 
79701. 

Change to Registered Agent and Office 

4. The entity is a Umited UabiUty conpany, which has authorized the changes indicated 
below through its board of directors or by an offico of the conpany so authorized by its board of 
directors, as provided by the Texas Business Organizatbns Code. 

a. The NEW registoed agent is an individual residoit of the state whose name is 
Padraig Ennis. 

b. The business address of the registoed agent and registered office address is 
CHANGED to 310 W. WaU Stred, Suite 500, Midland, Texas 79701. 

5. The stred address of the registoed office and the street address of the office of the 
registoed agent are the same. 

Statement of Approval 

6. The changes specified in this statement have been authorized by the oitity in the 
maimo required by the BOC or in the manno required by the law governing the filing entity, as 
appUcable. 

Effectiveness of Filing 

7. This document becomes effedive when ti» document is filed by the secxdaiy of state. 

Execution 

8. The undersigned affirms that the poson designated as registered agent has consented 
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to the appointment. The undosigned signs this document subject to the penalties imposed by law for 
the submission ofa materially false or fraudulent instrument and certifies undo penalty ofperjuiy that 
the undosigned is authorized to execute the filing instrument. 

Dated: lh j \ .2010 

Priority Powo Management, LLC 

Bv: F ( t A ^OIUMM 
Paaraig Ennis, Member (A person authorized 
to sign on behalf of the entity) 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 43 



OPUC Certi f ication Appl icat ion fo r Aggregators/Power Brokers N A O e M E N T 

Exhibit A-15. "Secretary of State" 

Provide evidence that the applicant has registered with the Ohio Secretary of the State. 

PPM has provided evidence of our registration with the Ohio Secretary of the State (certificate number 
1926206) herein. 
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*201009200620* 
DATE: DOCUMENT ID DESCRIPTION FILING EXPED PENALTY CERT COPY 
04/05/2010 201009200620 REG, OF FOR. PROFIT LIM, LIAB, CO. 125,00 100,00 .00 .00 .00 

(LFP) 

Receipt 
This is not a bill. Please do not remit payment. 

PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 
RANDY BRANNON 
2080 N, HIGHWAY 360 #360 
GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75050 

S T A T E OF O H I O 
C E R T I F I C A T E 

Ohio Secretary of State, Jennifer Brunner 

1926206 

It is hereby certified that the Secretary of State of Ohio has custody of the business records for 

PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 

and, that said business records show the filing and recording of: 

Document(s) 

REG. OF FOR. PROFIT LIM. LIAB. CO. 

Document No(s): 

201009200620 

United States of America 
State of Ohio 

Office of the Secretary of State 

Witness my hand and the seal of 
the Secretary of State at Columbus, 
Ohio this 1st day of April, A.D. 
2010. 

u9>^ 

Ohio Secretary of State 
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Power 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

A M A O J e u e N T 

B. APPLICANT MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 
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Exhibit B-1. "Jurisdictions of Opera t ion" 

Provide a list of all jurisdictions in which the applicant or any affi l iated interest of the applicant is, at the date 
of f i l ing the application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or wholesale 
electric services including aggregation services. 

Priority Power IVIanagement, LLC is currently licensed to provide energy consulting, brokering and or 
aggregation services in the following jurisdictions: 

Illinois 

IVIaryland 

New Jersey 

New York 

Pennsylvania 

Texas 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 48 



OPUC Cert i f icat ion Appl icat ion fo r Aggregators/Power Brokers 
Power 

M J i N A O f M e i v r 

Exhibit B-2. "Experience & Plans" 

Provide a description of the applicant's experience and plan fo r contracting with customers, providing 
contracted services, providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in 
accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code. 

Experience 

PPM provides Portfolio-Wide Energy Planning and Consulting Services to a multitude of clients. 

Portfolio-Wide Energy Planning 

Data Rate 
Management Optimization 

Energy I Risk I Demand 
Sourcing | Management | Management 

Load Energy 
Invoice Data 

Audit Invoices 

Generate 
Reports 

Benchmark 
Facilities 

Track Carbon 
Footprint 

Monitor 
Regulatory Status 

Identify 
Alternative Rates 

Utility 
Negotiations 

Load Response 
Programs 

Qualify Suppliers 

RFP Competitive 
bidding 

Load Aggregation 

Price Structuring 

Contract 
Negotiations 

Identify Risk 
Tolerance 

Establish Success 
Goals 

Develop Strategy 

Implementand 
track results 

Establish 
Financial Success 

Criteria 

Conduct 
Preliminary 

Energy Audits 

Report Findings 

Eco-Friendly 
Alternatives 

Customized operational delivery with unmatched sophistication! 

Plan 

PPM plans to provide our services to our customers in Ohio based on their specific needs and requirements. 
Since PPM does not take title to any electricity supply, we will not be providing billing statements to the 
customer for their electricity purchases. PPM and the customer will have a separate agreement defining the 
scope of work and services that PPM will provide to the customer, as well as the amount of compensation to be 
paid to PPM, The PPM fee will in most cases be a volumetric fee measured in $/kWh. The supplier that wins the 
customers' business will include the PPM fee in the electricity contract price and then remit the collected fee 
monthly as the customer pays the electricity supplier. In some cases, the customer may elect to have PPM 
invoice them separately each month rather than including the fee in the electricity contract price. 

Once the electricity contract has been executed, PPM remains engaged with the customer to manage any 
customer inquiries and or supplier issue resolution matters. The customer will have an assigned account 
manager, which will be available to assist in this regard. 

PPM expects that most customer engagements in Ohio will be with existing PPM clients that have locations in 
Ohio and PPM is already providing services to the client in other states. 
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Priority Power Managements services to clients are focused around our core business of Energy Supply and Risk 
Management. Our methodologies have been developed and refined through years of personal energy 
experience that is focused in the people who will be actively working with our clients. Our services include the 
following subject areas: 

• Energy Data Management 

• Energy Acquisition Management 

• Energy Account Management 

• Energy Billing Management 

Energy Management Process 

Being effective requires a commitment to excellence that begins with a proven process. PPM provides energy 
acquisition management services to clients using a structured five (5) step process as depicted in the diagram 
below. 

Data Collection 
strategy 

' Assessment/ 
Development 

Procurement Contract 
' Management 

Portfolio 
Management 

Historical Usage • AssessClient 
Information Goals and 

lnten.'al Meter 
Data 

Contract 
Information 

Facilit'/ 
Operational 
Information 

Operations 
Assess Market 
Conditions 
Assess Short 
and LongTerm 
Risks 

Develop 
Strategy 

Supplier 
Qualifications 
RFP 
Administration 

Supply 
Aggregation 

Price 
Structuring 

Contract 
Negotiations 

Verify'Switches 

Bill Auditing 

Compliance 

Supplier Issue 
Resolution 

Expiration Date 
Management 

Price Risk 

Management 

Forward Market 

Outlooking 

Hedging 

Blend a Extend 

Adjust strategies As Needed forCont inuous Improvement 

Data Collection 

PPM will gather the historical usage information for least the last 12 months of data for each meter and some 
will also require interval data to further define the load history for pricing. Once the data is in hand, a review of 
the data will be conducted to define any questionable data that may need correction. This data analysis is 
critical in determining the most suitable structuring and pricing options that will deliver the lowest cost to the 
client. 

As a part of the data collection and analysis phase, PPM will not only be analyzing the historical usage 
information for competitive supply pricing, but will also assess the rate (tariff) and delivery charges assessed by 
the Transmission and Distribution Service Provider ("TDSP"). In this assessment, PPM identifies potential 
demand ratchet, power factor and other TDSP related issues that may highlight savings opportunities for the 
client. 
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In addition to historical data, PPM will request copies of current electricity supply contracts to review past 
performance and establish a baseline for use in determining forward cost savings. The supply contracts will also 
determine the exact contract end date for each meter, which will be used in the procurement and contracting 
process to ensure that no early termination penalties are assessed to the client once the new contract becomes 
effective. 

Strategy Assessment and Development 

PPM manages client's electricity spend on a portfolio basis driven by strategies discussed and agreed to by the 
client. Various strategies will be developed and deployed based on several factors including the following: 

• Budgetary constraints 

• Growth expectations 

• Required flexibility to account for the unexpected 

• Decision making process - individual or by committee 

• Agreement term requirements 

• Key individuals 

• Financial constraints 

• Risk Profile 

One of the most important parts of the process is to understand the structure of the products available to meet 
any given strategy. Higher energy prices have forced many end users to consider energy structures other than 
fixed price. As clients migrate up the Price vs Risk Continuum curve, the available products inherently created 
greater risk for the client with the opportunity for higher rewards in terms of savings, PPM will also evaluate 
potential applicable pricing structures to fit the client's operational characteristics and risk tolerance. 

Also as a part of the Strategy phase, PPM would want to understand if the client has a desire to include 
renewable energy supply into their product mix, PPM is experienced in procuring renewable energy supply to 
meet a specific client goal. Goals and pricing options can be included in the RFP for electricity supply, although it 
is important to understand that the physical electricity supply can be contracted separately from the 
procurement of renewable energy credits. 

Procurement 

Once a strategy has been determined, a Request for Proposal is developed for the solicitation. PPM is very 
experienced in developing, soliciting and negotiating large scale energy purchases, 

A professional and detailed RFP document will be developed that includes detailed electricity pricing 
instructions for the products and terms that were defined in the Strategy phase. 

Next a list of qualified certified Retail Electricity Providers (REP) will be developed for RFP distribution. PPM has 
experience working with over 20 REPs in various markets and is able to assist our clients in developing a 
qualified list of bidders. Because of our deep energy experience, PPM also provides insight into the REP 
landscape for our clients. 

Once the RFP is issued, PPM will work closely with the client to ensure that any questions from REPs are 
answered and managed so that the client is not distracted from its core business operations during this 
solicitation process. 
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Each client may have different criteria for selecting a supplier. PPM generally uses the following criteria when 
qualifying suppliers for clients: 

Qualitative Criteria 

The qualitative criteria are centered on the completeness of the response, and the creativeness in developing 
solutions for the client based on the data and requirements presented in the request. These criteria include, but 
are not limited to: 

• Completeness of Supplier Information & Price Proposals 

• Creativeness in presenting options and incentives that improve the economic value proposition for 
Client 

• Extent of representation network and overlay with Client network 

• Extent of supplier delivery and service program capabilities 

• Contract terms and conditions 

The largest contributor to how PPM scores the Qualitative aspects is based on the terms and conditions of each 
REP contract, PPM understands all aspects of electricity contract negotiations. 

Quantitative Criteria 

The quantitative criteria relates specifically to the economic value proposition presented in the Pricing proposal. 
Clients are interested most in creative solutions to conventional sourcing problems. Key criteria include: 

Options and incentives for engaging in a long term agreement 

Options and incentives for becoming the sole-source supplier for multiple facilities 

A service provider who will work to provide complete and consistent services to all Client facilities. 

Total delivered overall cost by class and location consistent with Client standards and specifications 

Other incentive programs 

As a part of the Quantitative Scoring, PPM will develop detailed analysis of REP pricing. A simple ranking of 
effective costs to the Client based on suppliers pricing will be developed to illustrate the rankings by term and 
the spread between the lowest cost supplier and the others. 

Supplier Scoring 

A cross-functional PPM & client selection committee will use the following criteria to evaluate the bidders' 

responses: 

• Total Cost (cost of the commodity and related services, plus delivery; with focus on achieving first year 
bottom-line savings) 

Continuous Improvement capabilities (ability to assist Client with process improvement throughout 
long-term relationship) 
Breadth of products and services provided 

• 

• 
• Quality of Service to Facilities 
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Contract Management 

After the procurement process has been completed, PPM moves into a Contract Management phase that 
includes the following activities: 

Monitoring timely switching of accounts; 

Auditing invoices for compliance with contract terms; 

Providing assistance to the client in any Supplier issue resolution process; 

Administration of adding and deleting accounts as necessary; 

Facilitating emergency restoration during unplanned power outages. 

Provide the client with estimated annual budgets and or ongoing performance metrics. 

Portfolio Management 

After the procurement process has been completed, PPM also moves into a Portfolio Management phase that 

includes the following activities: 

Provide the client with market reports highlighting market events and pricing levels on a periodic basis; 

Provide the client with price discovery by querying market suppliers to ensure incremental energy 

purchases are at market price; 

Maintain a customized hedging position report for the client outlining various purchases and risk 

positions, if applicable; 

Perform continuous market outlooking and forward price discovery to meet the client's specific trigger 

levels; 

Analyze "blend & extend" opportunities to meet desired budget goals; 

Adjust strategies as needed to meet changing client goals and market environment. 

These strategies are focused on the client specific needs and opportunities that are intrinsic to the portfolio 
being managed. 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 53 



OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 
P€ywer 

M A N A O E U e N T 

Exhibit B-3. "Summary of Experience" 

Provide a concise summary of the applicant's experience in providing aggregation service(s) including 
contracting with customers to combine electric load and representing customers in the purchase of retail 
electric services, (e.g. number and types of customers served, uti l i ty service areas, amount of load, etc.). 

PPM's expertise in providing energy management and consulting services is very broad and deep. Because 
customer base of small-medium to very large, government to non-government, is very diverse in every way 
possible, PPM has been driven to continue to grow our expertise in many areas since our establishment in 2001, 
Today, PPM is recognized as a leader in providing electric utility procurement solicitations with a high degree of 
expertise. 

Our client base includes oil and gas companies, industrial manufacturing, healthcare, commercial real estate, 
governmental, food service, hospitality, retail and financial services firms. Priority Power Management business 
highlights include: 

• Management staff has over 300 years of corr^bined experience in regulated and deregulated energy marl<ets; 

• Approximately 1,200 clients representing 18,000+ utility accounts; 

• Over 1,300MW of peak power demand under management; 

• Over 8.0+TWh of power managed annually, enough to power 350,000 residential homes a year; 

• IVIanaging power requirements for 32 of the top 100 independent oil and gas producers in Texas, which 

represent nearly 600 Bcf/yr of natural gas production and 75 MMh/yr of oil production;. 

• An estimated 40 Bcf of physical and financial natural gas positions managed annually; 

• Procurement and management of an estimated $1 billion in annual energy spend. 

Our staff is comprised largely of energy professionals that spent their entire careers working in the regulated 
and deregulated market place. The combined energy experience from our key staff surpasses 300+ years of 
energy experience. A partial listing of our staff and experience is highlighted below. 

PPM Employee 

Years Energy Experience 

John Bick ! 23 

Pat Ennis 30 

Q < * l KewinVung i 26 

î  

o t h e r Notable 

Strategy, Risk Mana^ment 

Formerly Director, TXU Energy 

Procurement, Regulations, Tariffs 

Formerly with TXU, Founder PPM 

Risk Management, Project Development 

Formerly with TXU and CEO of REP 

Trenton Cogdili 35 

J«ff Brooks ! 31 

Procurement, Account Management 

Formerly wfth TXU and Cogdlll Energy 

Data Analysis, Procuremant 

Formerly with TXU, National Accounts 

Gayla Wlgley 33 
Operations, Billing, Customer Service 

Formerly with TXU and IT Consultant 

H i S l V BobBuckner | 34 

l.egal. Contract Negotiations 

Formerly wfth Enserch, Prh/ate Practice 

Team Member 

Years Energy Experience 

Mike Brssowan 20 

Pam Mancha 

Perry Ruthven 13 

o the r Notable 

Procurement, Risk and Data Management 

Formerly with THG, GDF Suez, C&B, Fowler 

Account Management,Supply 

Formerly with AEP, Reliant, Constellation 

Risk Management, Procurement 

Formerly Sr. Sales Exec, TXU 

Billing, Customer Service 

Formerly with TXU in Operations 

Senior Consultant, Procurement, Risk Mgt. 

Formerly President, ParEnergy 

Customer Account Management 

Formerly Key Acct Mgr, TXU 

Strategy, Procurement, Acct Mgt for CRE 

34-yrs experience in CRE property mgt 
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Resumes of some of PPM's key staff are provided for reference. 

John J. Bick, Managing Principal, PPIM 
Energy Industry Experience - 25 years 

2003 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 

2000 - 2003 TXU Energy 

1989 - 2003 TXU Electric & Gas 

John Bick is the Managing Principal of PPM and has over 25 years of energy experience. His broad and extensive business 

experience provides knowledge and insight to companies seeking value-creation in energy-related non-core competencies, 

John joined PPM in 2003 and leads PPM's strategy, business development, and risk management initiatives, as well as 

providing hands on expertise to large clients. 

Prior to joining PPM, John spent 14-years in both the regulated and deregulated energy markets. He was previously 
Director of Strategic Business Development for TXU Energy, where he was responsible for identifying and developing multi-
million dollar, comprehensive energy management and outsourcing engagements across North America, Throughout these 
engagements, John directed teams of multi-disciplined professionals spanning functional areas of energy supply, risk 
management, capital management, engineering, operations and maintenance, and environmental. In addition to energy, 
John led strategic initiatives into water-related outsourcing services, including groundwater development and industrial 
wastewater treatment/reuse applications. 

Prior to joining TXU Energy, he was the Manager of Strategic Accounts for TXU Electric & Gas, the regulated utility in North 
Texas, In this role, John managed teams of key account executives which managed direct sales relationships with TXU's 
largest industrial and commercial clients representing in excess of $2,2 billion in revenue to the corporation. Under John's 
leadership, the organization was also recognized in two consecutive years as the "Outstanding National Accounts 
Organization" by large national commercial and industrial multi-site end-use companies in a poll conducted by the Edison 
Electric Institute in 1999 and 2000, 

He holds a Bachelor of Science in Construction Engineering from Texas Tech University and has completed Executive 
Management Programs at Southern Methodist University's Cox School of Business and The Wharton School at the 
University of Pennsylvania, He has completed advanced level training classes at the New York Mercantile Exchange 
(NYMEX) on Natural Gas Risk Management and Trading, He is a member of the Association of Energy Engineers, the Texas 
Association of Healthcare Facilities Management, and the internationally known Strategic Account Management 
Association, John is an active member of the Executive Committee for the Texas Electricity Professionals Association 
(TEPA). 

For the past three consecutive years since 2011, John was honored with recognition by the Dallas Business Journal in its 
selection of "Who's Who In Dallas, Houston, Pittsburgh Energy," The Dallas Business Journal noted that energy is a vast and 
fast-moving industry, which makes it simultaneously a key area for business-to-business development and a tough field 
with which to keep pace, John was selected as one of 300 leaders around the country working in positions throughout the 
energy industry. 
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Kevin Yung, P.E., Chief Risk and Development Officer, PPM 

Electric Industry Experience - 29 years 

2008 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 

2004 - 2008 W Power & Light 

2002 - 2004 Private Risk Management Practice 

2000 - 2002 TXU Energy 

1998 - 2000 TXU International Development 

1985 - 1998 TXU Electric & Gas 

Kevin has 29-years of energy industry experience. He directly manages wholesale energy procurement (natural gas and 
electricity), buys and sells wholesale energy, oversees and performs load forecasting and scheduling, and manages energy 
price risk at a portfolio level. 

Prior to joining PPM, Kevin was President and CEO of W Power & Light, a certified retail electricity provider in the State of 

Texas, W Power & Light successfully received regulatory approval and licensing from the Public Utility Commission ofTexas 

(PUCT), and commercially operated with full regulatory compliance for more than four (4) years before its investors decided 

to exit the retail electricity market. While at W Power & Light, Kevin had responsibility for all aspects of providing retail 

electricity, from wholesale portfolio management, risk management, and customer operations. 

Prior to W Power & Light, Kevin spent two years in energy consulting and aggregation for large commercial and industrial 

consumers, focusing on energy procurement strategies and commodity price risk management. 

He also worked for 20 years in various TXU companies in both regulated and non-regulated businesses. Prior to leaving TXU 

Energy he was Director of Retail Commodity Management where he developed electricity products, structured pricing 

options, and managed retail customer credit risk. 

Prior to that, he was manager of project finance for TXU/Enserch International Development Corp, In this role he performed 

economic and financial modeling of domestic and foreign power plants under development or as potential acquisitions, 

Kevin was also a senior engineer responsible for transmission and distribution forecasting and design. 

He holds a Bachelors of Science in Electrical Engineering from Texas A&M University, and an Executive MBA from The 
University ofTexas at Dallas. He is a licensed Professional Engineer in the State ofTexas. 
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Padraig "Pat" Ennis, Founder, PPM 
Electric Industry Experience - 33 years 

2000 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 
1981 - 2000 TXU Electric & Gas 

Padraig (Pat) Ennis is the Founder and a Principal of Priority Power Management, He has over 33 years of energy 
experience and was a driving force in enabling commercial and industrial clients to receive benefits through aggregation in 
the ERCOT power market. Through Pat's leadership. Priority Power Management has grown to be the largest licensed 
commercial aggregator in ERCOT, In addition to aggregation, Pat's experience includes forward price discovery, data 
analysis, rate and tariff optimization, bill auditing, metering solutions, as well as a profound knowledge of electrical 
distribution systems and operations. Prior to forming Priority Power Management, Pat held various account management 
and supervisory positions with TXU Energy. 

Jeff Brooks, VP Operations, PF>M 
Electric Industry Experience - 34 years 

2004 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 
2000 - 2004 TXU Energy 
1980 - 2000 TXU Electric & Gas 

Jeff Brooks is the Vice President of operations and pricing with 34 years of energy experience. Prior to Priority Power 
Management, Jeff held various roles at TXU Energy. Most recently, Jeff was a Senior Project Coordinator responsible for 
rate analysis, project management, account management, customer data analysis, customer problem resolutions, sales 
support and supervision. He is very versed in detailed analysis of load shapes, pricing, cost analysis, procurement, 
negotiation and bill auditing. Prior to this role, he had Project Management positions leading teams for developing 
processes and procedures for transition into a deregulated market structure in Texas, Other positions at TXU Energy 
included Account Manager, Town Manager and Operations Manager, Jeff holds a Bachelor of Science in General Studies 
from Texas Christian University, 

Gayla Wigley, Assistant Vice Presklent, PPM 
Electric Industry Experience- 36 years 

2004 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 
2001-2002 City of Fort Worth 
2000-2001 Avision Technologies -IT Consultant 
1976-2000 TXU Energy (and its predecessor companies) 

Gayla Wigley is Assistant Vice President, Operations and Customer Services at PPM. She has responsibility for the overall 
supervision of internal back-office processes and customer service. Additionally, Gayla interfaces daily with electricity and 
natural gas suppliers to facilitate customer changes in operations (ie, move in's, disconnects of accounts, contract 
addendums and other daily operational issues). 

Prior to joining PPM, Gayla was an independent Information Technology Systems Consultant providing business process 
analysis and support for clients such as the City of Fort Worth, Texas, Avision Technologies Group and TXU Energy. Prior to 
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her time as a consultant, Gayla spent 24 years at TXU Energy where she held management positions at the corporate and 
regional levels in the areas of Customer Operations and Information Technology. 

Mike Brasovan, Executive Vice President 

Energy Industry Experience - 20 years 

2012 - present Priority Power Management, LLC 

2004 - 2012 THG Energy Solutions, LLC 

2003-2004 Tractebel Energy Services 

2001-2003 Carter & Burgess, Inc, 

1993-2001 Fowler Energy Company 

Mike Brasovan has extensive experience in managing competitive bid solicitations for power and natural gas supplies, as 
well as negotiating energy supply contracts with all types of utilities. He provides comprehensive energy expertise for 
clients, designing the best energy options and obtaining pricing from all suppliers in the market based on a client's needs 
and desires. His knowledge of deregulated energy markets allows him to develop and implement highly effective 
purchasing strategies for PPM's customers, Mike also has a thorough understanding of demand side management and 
energy conservation methodologies. In addition to developing and implementing competitive procurement projects for 
customers, Mike also works with customers to manage their energy supply cost risk. 

While president of THG Energy Solutions, LLC, he worked with most of THG's customers to recommend when they should 
lock in energy costs and, in nearly all cases, assisted them with the implementation of their risk management plans. As part 
of this work, he helped develop THG's proprietary bill auditing software system to track each customer's usage and cost 
information as well as provide online invoice retrieval and bill audit information. 

Extremely knowledgeable in electric and gas regulation, Mike maximizes the benefits while managing clients' market risks. 
Mike is experienced in both de-regulated and regulated energy markets. 

Jeremiah Bastian, Senior Procurement Manager, PPM 
Energy Industry Experience - 8 years 

2012 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 

2006 - 2012 THG Energy Solutions, LLC 

Jeremiah Bastian is a Senior Procurement Manager at Priority Power Management in the Arlington office. Prior 
to joining PPM, Jeremiah was Vice President of THG Energy Solutions, LLC, and was responsible for procuring 
pricing for all THG customers and managing customers' natural gas portfolios. Additionally, Jeremiah served as 
database administrator for THG's proprietary auditing system, 

Jeremiah is well-versed in energy pricing for various pricing models, utility data analysis, customer account 
management, procurement, and contract negotiations. As a Senior Procurement Manager for PPM, he is 
responsible for monitoring the commodities market on a daily basis and giving recommendations to clients on 
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locking energy costs and managing contract risks. This mainly consists of natural gas futures contracts tracked on 
the NYMEX, 

Stephen J. hloule, P.E., Senior Advisor 
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Energy Industry Experience - 33 years 
2010 - Present Priority Power Management, LLC 

Stephen J, Houle & Associates 
Reach Energy, LLC 

2009 - 2010 Tenaska Power Services 
2006 - 2009 Black River Capital 
2004 - 2006 TXU Electric Delivery and Basic Resources 
1999 - 2004 TXU Electric Delivery, Business Services, 

Gas Distribution and Lone Star Pipeline 
1977 - 1999 TXU predecessor companies 

Steve Houle a retained specialty consultant at Priority Power Management, LLC and serves as Senior Advisor to PPM and its 
clients on regulatory matters. He is also a Principal at Stephen J Houle & Associates and serves as Executive Director at 
Reach Energy, LLC, where he advises senior management on the utility and electric energy markets. He has over 33 years of 
energy experience. 

From February 2009 to April 2010, Mr. Houle was a Director at Tenaska Power Services, responsible for Business 
Development and Origination. 

From 2006-2009, Mr, Houle was a Partner at Black River Capital, an energy-focused Investment Advisor and registered 
FINRA Broker-Dealer, At Black River, Mr, Houle was responsible for business development, deal analysis, and utility 
consulting. 

From 2004-2006, Houle was Vice President, Corporate Technology and Development, for TXU Electric Delivery and Vice 
President of Basic Resources. He was responsible for the formulation and development of technology strategies to enhance 
long-term corporate operating performance. Other responsibilities included directing TXU's participation in industry R&D 
efforts such as EPRI, EEI, NEETRAC, and PSERC, and intellectual property. 

In 2005, Houle led TXU's team in developing and negotiating TXU's innovative agreement with CURRENT Group LLC to 
transform TXU Electric Delivery's power distribution network into the nation's first broadband-enabled Smart Grid, Overlaid 
on the existing electric distribution system, the BPL network uses advanced digital communication to provide real-time 
monitoring of the electric distribution network to improve network reliability, asset utilization, and customer service, 

Mr, Houle was Vice President of Rates and Regulation from 1999-2004 for TXU Electric Delivery, TXU Business Services, TXU 
Gas Distribution, and TXU Lone Star Pipeline, Houle was responsible for all aspects of Economic Regulation, including 
managing proceedings before regulatory agencies, regulatory compliance, and legislative advocacy, Houle directed the 
preparation, filing, and resolution of the various regulatory proceedings required to implement electric restructuring in 
Texas, He also initiated gas rate cases that resulted in increases in annual non-fuel revenue of $80 million, Houle has 
testified in over 40 rate and regulatory proceedings, primarily in the areas of fuel cost recovery, rate design, and cost 
allocation. 

During the period 1977-1999, Houle held a variety of positions in the Electric Distribution, Rates, and Economic Regulation 
areas of TXU, Responsibilities included contract administration, pricing, load research, and cost analysis, 

Houle graduated from the University of Notre Dame in May 1977, with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical 
Engineering. In December 1979, he received the degree of Masters of Business Administration from the University of 
Dallas. He is a registered Professional Engineer in Texas, 
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Robert Buckner, Attorney, PPM 
Electric Industry Experience- 37 years 

1998 - Present Private Practice, Attorney at Law 
2001 - 2002 TXU Energy, Deregulated Electricity Contracts 
1978 - 1998 Enserch Corporation, Natural Gas Regulatory Law 

1975 - 1978 City of Dallas, Asst. City Attorney, Utility Regulation 

Robert "Bob" Buckner, is Priority Power Management's retained general counsel, and provides expertise in negotiating 
energy and other business contracts for PPM, 

Bob has worked with utility legal and contractual issues in the state ofTexas since 1975, He has been actively involved with 
electricity sales contracts since the Texas market was deregulated in January 2002, gaining extensive experience with retail 
contract provisions, the assignments and renegotiations of contracts, letters of authority and representation, corporate 
guarantees, and credit, trading and market risk issues. 

Bob has drafted and assisted in the negotiation of more than 200 electricity and natural gas contracts and related 
documents for the sale of electricity and natural gas to large commercial and industrial customers in Texas and around the 
country. 

He has conducted research related to the deregulated market in Texas, as well as the tariffs and substantive rules and 
regulations of the Public Utility Commission and the Electric Reliability Council ofTexas, His experience includes service as 
assistant general counsel for Enserch Corp, assistant city attorney for the City of Dallas, assistant district attorney for El Paso 
County, and private practice in El Paso and the Dallas/Fort Worth metroplex. 

He graduated with bachelor's and law degrees from the University ofTexas at Austin, 
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Power 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

A N A o E M e 

Exhibit B-4. "Disclosure of Liabilities and Invest igat ions" 

Provide a description of all existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the applicant's f inancial 
or operational status or ability to provide the services i t is seeking to be certified to provide. 

PPM does not have any existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matters that could adversely impact the our financial or 
operational status or ability to provide the services we offer to clients. 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 61 



Power 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A M A Q E M E N T 

Exhibit B-5. "Disclosure of Liabilities and Invest igat ions" 

Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of the applicant have 
ever been convicted or held liable fo r f raud or fo r violation o f any consumer protection or antitrust laws within 
the past f ive years. 

YES or X NO 

Neither PPM, or a predecessor of PPM, or any principal officer of PPM has ever been convicted or held liable for 
fraud or for violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 
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Powder 
OPUC Cert i f icat ion Appl icat ion fo r Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A O E M E N T 

Exhibit B-6. "Disclosure o f Liabilities and Invest igat ions" 

Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification, license, or 
application to provide retail or wholesale electric service including aggregation service denied, curtailed, 
suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years. 

YES or X NO 

Neither PPM, nor a predecessor of PPM, has ever had any certification, license, or application to provide retail or 
wholesale electric service including aggregation service denied, curtailed, suspended, revoked, or cancelled 
within the past two years. 
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Power 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A O E U E N T 

C. APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 
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P€M/er 
OPUC Cert i f icat ion Appl icat ion fo r Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A O E M E 

Exhibit C-1. "Annua l Reports" 

Provide the two most recent Annual Reports to Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the 
applicant should provide similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and 
why. 

Priority Power Management, LLC is a privately-held company, thus we have no Shareholders other than the two 
partners of the firm -John Bick and Padraig Ennis-and do not produce an Annual Report to Shareholders. 
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P€3iwer 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A O E M E N T 

Exhibit C-2. "SEC Filings" 

Provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. I f applicant does not have such filings, i t may submit 
those of its parent company. If the applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in 
Exhibit C-2 that the applicant is not required to f i le wi th the SEC and why. 

Priority Power Management, LLC is a privately-held company, thus we are not required to make any filings with 
the SEC. 
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Power 
OPUC Certi f ication Appl icat ion for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A O E M E N T 

Exhibit C-3. "Financial Statements" 

Provide copies o f the applicant's two most recent years o f audited financial statements (balance sheet, income 
statement, and cash f low statement). I f audited financial statements are not available, provide officer 
certified financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this 
requirement, i t shall f i le audited or officer certified financial statements covering the life of the business. 

Priority Power Management, LLC has provided audited financial statements herein. 
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PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Financial S ta tements 
December 31,2013 and 2012 

(With Report of Independent Certified Public Accountant Thereon) 

^ 

Wayne M. Manning 
Certified Public Accountant 
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WAYNE M. MANNING ^ffl 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountant 

The Board of Managers 
Priority Power Management, LLC 

We have audited the financial statements of Priority Power Management, LLC (a Texas limited 
liability company) {the "Company"), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 
2012 and the related statements of earnings, changes in members' capital, and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are firee of material misstatement. 

An audit includes performing procedures to obi:aixi audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Priority Power Management, LLC as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the 
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

March 4, 2014 

4k _^,^ Texas Society of 
CRn, Certified Public Accountants 

MEMBER OF 
AiHElUCA.\-INSnTUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTA-VrS 

•mXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIHED PUBUC ACCOUNTA-NTS 

P.O. Box 1074 Andrews, Texas 79714 
(432) 523-7261 • www.wiimicpa.com • (432) 224-1068 fax 
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Prior i ty Power Management , LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

ASSETS 

Balance Sheets 
December 31, December 31, 

2012 

Cur ren t Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificates of deposit 
Trade accounts receivable, net of allow^mce 

Total cu r ren t assets 

Proper ty a n d Equipment , Net of Accumulated Depreciat ion 

Contract Rights, Net of Accumulated Amoi^za t i on 

Other Assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' CAPITAL 

Cur ren t Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Total cu r r en t liabilities 

Commi tmen t s a n d Contingencies 

M e m b e r s ' Capital 
Common members' interests, no par value, 500 

units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012 
Accumulated earnings 

Total m e m b e r s ' capital 

Total liabilities a n d m e m b e r s ' capital 

i 3,387,764 
252,546 

1,002,871 

4,643,181 

994,120 

196,151 

314,425 

; 6,147,877 

1,270,697 
754,023 
991,609 

3,016,329 

146,805 

426,893 

183,183 

3,773,210 

617,993 
64,861 

.623a393 

1,306,247 

143,539 
— , . . ' - . J 

599,248 

755,700 

512,968 
4,328,662 

4,841,630 

; 6,147,877 

512,968 
2,504,542 

3,017,510 

3,773,210 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Statements of Earnings 

Revenue 
Aggregation fees 
Consulting income 
Other revenue 

Total r evenue 

Cost of Revenue 
Direct costs 
Affinity program 
Commissions 

Total cost of revenue 

Gross Profit 

Operat ing Expenses 
Psrsonnel-related costs 
Professional fees 
Insurance 
Depreciation 
Office 
Office rent 
Travel and entertainment 
Utilities 
Vehicles and small equipment 
Advertising 
Charitable contributions 
Taxes and licenses 

Total opera t ing expenses 

Income Before Other Income (Expense) 

Other Income (Expense) 
Other income/(expense) 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Total o the r income (expense) 

NET INCOME 

Year Ended 
December 31, z o i s 

1 6,614,319 
1,792,835 

3,008,087 

1 1,415,241 

2,950,030 
50,295 

294,629 

3,294,954 

8,120,287 

3,010,365 

257,644 
155,717 
76,275 

142,614 
125,850 
116,366 

58,571 
35,535 
8,660 

49,370 
39,744 

4,076,711 

Year Ended 
December 31. 2012 

$ 5,588,140 
1,261,550 

275,928 

7,125,618 

659,325 
74,339 

285,768 

1,019,432 

6,106,186 

3,003,167 
280,089 
159,088 
40,350 

126,662 
98,099 
90,709 
58,903 
24,170 

425 
38,443 
42,515 

3,962,620 

4,043,576 2,143,566 

(85,583) 
6,127 

(79,456) 

3,964,120 s_ 

107,171 
5,301 

(1,082) 

111,390 

2,254,956 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Statement of Changes in Members' Capital 
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Balance at December 31,2011 

Cash dividends paid to common members 

Net income 

BaLance at December 31, 2012 

Cash dividends paid to common members 

Net income 

Balance at December 31, 2013 

N u m b e r of 
Common 

Units 

500 

500 

500 

5 . 

s 

$ 

Com^mon 
Member s ' 
In teres ts 

512,968 

512,968 

-

-

512,968 

«_ 

$ 

$. 

Accumulated 
Eaminfis 

1,791,586 

(1,542,000) 

2,234,956 

2,504,542 

(2,140,000) 

3,964,120 

4,328,662 

?_ 

$ 

^^ 

Total 
Members ' 

Capital 

2,304..5,M 

(1,542,000) 

2,254.956 

3,017,510 

(2,140,000) 

3,964,120 

4,841,630 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended 
December 31, 2013 

Year Ended 
December 31, aoig 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash a n d Cash Equivalents 

Cash flows from opera t ing activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Amortization of contract rights 
Gain/loss on sale of fixed assets 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in trade accounts receivable 
and unbilled revenue 

(Increase)/decrease in other assets 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Increase in deferred revenue 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows f rom investing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment 
P^edemption of certificates of deposit 
Purchase of certificates of deposit 
Purchase of contract rights 

3,964,120 S 

76,275 
230,742 

6,855 

(11,262) 
(131,242) 
526,402 

24,145 

4,686,035 

(930,445) 
501,477 

2,254,956 

40,350 
83,603 

(543,594) 
14,207 
61,828 

472,540 

2,383,890 

(113,590) 

(3,034) 
(492,179) 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows f rom financing activities: 
Payments on long-term obligations 
Cash distributions paid 
Capital contributions from members 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash a n d cash equivalents 

Cash a n d cash equivalents a t beginning of year 

Cash a n d cash equivalents a t end of year 

Cash pa id dur ing the vear for; 
Interest 

(428,968) 

(2,140,000) 

(2,140,000) 

2,117,067 

J ,270,697 

$ 3,387,764 $_ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(608,803) 

(9,132) 
(1,542,000) 

(1,551,132) 

223,955 

1.046.742 

1,270,697 

1,082 
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Prior i ty Power Management , LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 a n d 2012 

(1) D E S C R I F n O N OF BUSINESS 

Priority Power Management, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, was formed in January 
2008, to provide energy management services. As of October 1, 2011, the Company was no 
longer a wholly-owned subsidiary of AMEN Properties, Inc. 

(2) SLTMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of 
the accompanying financial statements follows. 

Management Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amoimts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from such estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to 
significant changes in the near term relate to the recognition of revenues, the estimate of the 
allowance for doubtful accoimts, the estimate of asset impairments and the determination cf 
depreciation and amortization expense. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all cash, money market 
accounts and other highly liquid investments available for current use with an initial maturity 
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable and Revenue Recognition 

The Company records brokerage commissions based on actual usage data obtained fi-om the 
energy supplier for that accotmting period, or to the extent actual usage data is not available, 
based on the estimated amount of electricity delivered to the energy consumers for that 
accounting period. The Company develops its estimates on a quarterly basis based on the 
following criteria: 

9 Payments received prior to the issuance of the financial statements; 
• Usage updates from energy suppliers; 
• Comparable historical usage data; and 
• Historical variances to previous estimates. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLTVTING POLICIES. CONTINUED 

Accounts Receivable and Revenue Recognition. Continued 

To the extent usage data cannot be obtained, the Company estimates revenue as follows: 

• Historical usage data obtained from the energy consumer in conjunction with the execution 
of the contract; 

• Analysis of prior year usage patterns; and 
• Specific review of indi\'idual energy supplier/location accounts. 

Once the data is received, the Company adjusts the estimated accounts receivable and 
revenue to the actual total amount in the period during which the payment is received. Based 
on management's current capacity to obtain actual energy usage, the Company currently 
estimates four to six weeks of revenue at the end of its accounting period. Differences 
between estimated and actual revenue have been within management's expectations and have 
not been material to date. 

The Company does not invoice bidders for the monthly commissions earned on retail 
electricity and demand response transactions, and, therefore, reports a portion of its 
receivables as "unbOled." Unbilled accounts receivable represents management's best 
estimate of energy provided by the energy suppliers to the energy consumers for a specific 
completed time period at contracted commission imes. Commissions paid in advance by 
certain energy suppliers are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized to commission 
revenue on a quarterly basis on the energy exchanged that month. 

Concentration of Credit Risk and Off-Balance Sheet Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of cash and trade accounts receivable. The Company has no significant 
off-balance sheet risk such as foreign exchange contracts, option contracts, or other foreign 
hedging arrangements. The Company places its cash with primarily one institution, which 
management believes has high credit quality. 

The Company provides credit in the form of invoiced and unbilled accounts receivable to 
bidders in the normal course of business. Collateral is not required for trade accovmts 
receivable, but ongoing credit evaluations of bidders are performed. Management provides 
for an allowance for doubtful accounts on a specifically identified basis, as well as through 
historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. Trade accounts receivable are written 
off when deemed uncollectible. To date write-offs have not been material. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 a n d 2012 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. CONTINUED 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") ASC 820 (formerly SFAS157), Fair Value 
Measurements, require disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, 
whether or not recognized in the accompanying balance sheet. Fair value is defined as the 
amount at which an instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing 
parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fair value estimates of financial 
instruments are not necessarily indicative of the amounts we might pay or receive in actual 
market transactions. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation 
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. 

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable 
approximate fair value because of the relatively short maturity of these instruments. 
Disclosure about fair value of financial instruments is based on pertinent information 
available to management as of December 31, 2013. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated economic useful lives. The method 
of depreciation does not change when equipment becomes idle. The estimated useful lives of 
the respective assets are defined below. 

Computers and software 3 years 
I.easehold improvements 5 years 
Office equipment 3 to 5 years 
Office furniture and equipment 5 to 10 years 

Maintenance and Repaid 

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Renewals or betterments 
which extend the Ufe or improve existing property and equipment are capitalized. 

Retirements 

Upon disposition or retirement of property and equipment, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed and any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to operations. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 a n d 2012 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. CONTINLTED 

Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets 

Generally accepted accounting principles specify circumstances in which certain long-lived 
and intangible assets must be reviewed for impairment. If the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds the sum of its expected future cash flows, the asset's carrying value must be written 
down to fair value. In determining the value of an investment property and whether the 
investment property is impaired, management considers several factors such as projected 
rental and vacancy rates, property operating expenses, capital expenditures and interest rates. 
The capitalization rate used to determine property valuation is based on the market in which 
the investment property is located, length of leases, tenant financial strength, the economy in 
general, demographics, environment, property location, visibiUty ,̂ age and physical condition 
among others. AH of these factors are considered by management in determining the value of 
any particular investment property. The value of any particular investment property is 
sensitive to the actual results of any of these factors, either individually or taken as a whole, If 
the actual results differ from management's judgment, the valuation could be negatively or 
positively affected. Application ofthis standard during the year ended December 31, 2013 did 
not result in an impairment loss. 

Intangible Assets 

The Company uses assumptions in establishing the carrying value, fair value and estimated 
lives of its intangible assets, the criteria used for these assumptions includes management's 
estimate of the asset's continuing ability to generate positive income from operations and 
positive cash flow in future periods compared to the carrying value of the asset, as well as the 
strategic significance of any identifiable intangible asset in the Company's business 
objectives. If the assets are considered impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by 
which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Useful lives and 
related amortization expense are based on an estimate of the period that the assets will 
generate revenues or otherwise be used by the Company, Factors that influence the 
likelihood of a material change in the Company's reported results include significant changes 
in the asset's ability to generate positive cash flow, a significant decline in the economic and 
competitive environment on which the asset depends, and any significant changes in the 
Company's strategic business objectives. 

Intangible assets consist of customer relationship and contracts and are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortization. Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized using the 
collections method, which approximates straight-line, over their estimated useful lives. 
Amortization expense was $230,742 and $83,603 was charged to the cost of revenue during 
the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. Accumulated amortization of 
intangible assets for ongoing contract rights amounted to $296,028 and $65,286 as of 
December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. In 2012, the Company acquired contract rights to 
THG Energy & Technology Solutions, LLC at a cost of $492,179. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For t he Years Ended December 31,2013 ^md 2012 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. CONTINUED 

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income is defined as changes in members' capital, exclusi\'e of transactions 
with members (such as capital contributions and dividends). The Company did not have any 
comprehensive income items in 2013 other than the net earnings as reported. 

Date of Management's Review 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 4, 2014, the date that the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

Advertising Expense 

AU advertising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising expense was approximately 
$8,660 and $425 for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Income Taxes 

The Company is taxed under the Internal Revenue Code as a partnership. In lieu of corporate 
income taxes, the members ofa partnership are taxed on their proportionate share of the 
Company's taxable income. Therefore, no provision or liability for Federal income tax is 
included in the accompanying financial statements. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASC Update 2010-06, "Fair Value Measurements and 
Disclosure,?" ("ASC Update 2010-06") that requires additional dKclosures surrounding 
transfers in and out of Levels i and 2, inputs and valuation techniques used to value Level 2 
and 3 measurements, and push down of previously prescribed fair value disclosures to each 
class of asset and liability for Levels 1, 2, and 3. This new authoritative guidance is effective 
for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, The Company 
will apply the new authoritative guidance in 2010. ASC Update 2010-06 also requires that 
purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements for Level 3 measurements be disclosed. This 
portion of the new authoritative guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15,2010. The Company applied this new authoritative guidance in 
the Company's 2011 financial statements. The adoption of ASC Update 2010-06 did not have 
a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

Management believes the impact of recentiy issued standards, which are not yet effective, wiU 
not have a material impact on the financial statements. 
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(3) 

Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liability Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

iTie Company holds the foUowing certificates of deposit as of December 31, 2013: 

2013 Matur i ty 
Certificate of deposit (2819) .39922% 

Total 

S 2,52,546 January 31, 2014 

252,546 

(4) TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. NET OF ALLOWANCE 

The Company does not invoice bidders for the monthly commissions earned on retail 
electricity transactions and, therefore, reports a portion of its receivables as "unbilled." 
UnbiUed accounts receivable represents management's best estimate of energy provided by 
energy suppliers to the energy consumers for a specific completed time period at contracted 
commission rates. 

Trade accounts receivable, net of aUowance consists of the following at December 31,2013 
and 2012: 

2013 2012 
Billed accounts receivable $ 1,002,061 
UnbiUed accounts receivable 810 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance 

1,002,871 

1,002,871 

991,609 

991,609 

991,609 

(5) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the foUowing at December 31, 2013 and 2012: 
2013 2012 

Computers and software 
Leasehold improvements 
Office equipment 
Office furniture and equipment 
Nuevo Substation 
Land 

Less accumulated depreciation 

$ 

524,550 
13,913 

151,015 
64,688 

480,693 
52,000 

1,286,859 
(292,739) 

994,120 

$ 

$ 

118,011 
11,992 

130,162 
64,016 

-
52,000 
376,181 

(229,376) 

146,805 

Depreciation expense mcluded in the accompanying statement of earnings and changes in 
members' capital for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 aggregated $76,275 and 
$40,350, respectively. 
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Priority Power Management, LLC 
(A Texas Limited Liabilitj'̂  Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENICES 

In the normal course ofbusiness, the Company maybe involved in disputes and/or claims 
made by others against it. Management beheves that the ultimate outcome of any disputes 
wiU not have a material effect on the financial statements at December 31, 2013. 

(7) CONCENTRATIONS 

The Company maintains cash balances at various financial institutions, which at times may 
exceed federally insured limits. At December 31, 2013, the Company had cash balances of 
approximately $3,448,299 in financial institutions that were in excess of amounts guaranteed 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company has not experienced any losses 
in such accounts and believes that it is not exposed to any significant credit risks on such 
accoimts. 

(8) OPERATING T F ASFS 

The Company leases office space under a non-cancelable operating lease with a term of five 
years. Lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $125,850. The following is a 
schedule by year of futiire minimum rentals under leases at December 31, 2013: 

Due in: 
2014 $ 107,952 
2015 86,127 
2016 79,281 
2017 - 2021 349,416 

Total minimum lease payments $ 622,776 

(9) U N E OF CREDIT 

On October 4, 2013, Priority Power Management, LLC entered into a loan agireement with 
FirstCapital Bank ofTexas, NA. The line of credit amount is up to $4,000,000 and proceeds 
must be used to construct an electric high voltage substation and primary distribution feeder 
for unrelated third party. 

As part of the loan agreement, the Company must maintain a $2,000,000 life insurance 
polic>', maintain a minimum tangible net worth of $2,500,000, maintain its primary demand 
deposit accounts with FirstCapital Bank ofTexas, NA. with a combined minimum cash 
balance of $1,000,000, and also maintain a cash flow ratio equal to or greater than 1.5X. As of 
December 31, 2013, there was no outstanding balance on the line of credit. 

12 
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P€3iwer 
OPUC Certi f ication Appl icat ion fo r Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A 

Exhibit C-4. "Financial Ar rangements" 

Provide copies of the applicant's financial arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., 

guarantees, bank commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,). 

Priority Power IVIanagement, LLC will fund our Aggregator/Power Brol<er operations and services from current 
operating cash, thus we do not have any required guarantees, banl< commitments, contractual arrangements, 
credit agreements, etc. and none are necessary to conduct business as an Aggregator/Power Broker. 
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OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 
Power 

M A N A O E M E N T 

Exhibit C-5. "Forecasted Financial Statements" 

Provide two years of forecasted financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement) for the applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, email 
address, and telephone number of the preparer. 

Priority Power IVIanagement, LLC has provided two (2) years of forecasted financial statements as requested 
herein. 

The preparers of the enclosed forecast are: 

John J. Bick 
Managing Principal 
Priority Power Management, LLC 
690 E. Lamar Blvd., Suite 500 
Arlington, TX 76011 
1(972)314-9040 
F (817) 887-0866 
]ilii^^i:£;,R[.iil['IY£0 vv ej;, n et 

Coleen Lawrence 
Controller 
Priority Power Management, LLC 
310 W, Wall St., Suite 500 
Midland, TX 79701 
1(432)620-9100 
F (432) 620-9145 
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BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 

Total Checking/Savings 

Accounts Receivable 

Total Accounts Receivable 

Other Current Assets 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Fixed Assets 

ToUl Fixed Assets 

Other Assets 

Total 1570 • THG Conract Rights 

Total Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Liabilit ies 

Current Liabilities 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 

ToUl Other Current Liabilit ies 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabil i t ies 

Equity 

3001 • Retained Earnings 

3009 ' Capital 

Total 3009 • Capital 

3109 ' Distr ibutions 

Total 3109 • Distr ibutions 

Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

ACTUALS 

Dec 31,13 

3,640,310 

1,002,061 

219,163 

4,861,533 

994,120 

196,151 

292,224 

6,147,877 

617,993 

688,254 

1,306,247 

1,306,247 

7,623,246 

3,964,120 

4,841,630 

6,147,877 

FORECASTED ESTIMATE 

Dec 31,14 

3,500,000 

800,000 

222,000 

4,522,000 

3,991,000 

0 

93,050 

8,606,050 

620,000 

263,600 

883,600 

883,600 

11,600,000 

5,000,000 

7,722,450 

8,606,050 

Dec 31 , 15 

3,500,000 

800,000 

222,000 

4,522,000 

3,791,000 

0 

89,050 

8,402,050 

620,000 

263,600 

883,600 

883,600 

15,600,000 

6,000,000 

7,518,450 

8,402,050 
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PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

income 

Total Income 

Cost of Goods Sold 

Total COGS 

Gross Profit 

Expense 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

other Income/Expense 

other Income 

Total other Income 

other Expense 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

ACTUALS 

Dec 31,13 

11,645,983 

2,950,030 

8,695,954 

4,660,715 

4,035,238 

70,000 

3,964,120 

FORECASTED ESTIMATE 

Dec 31, 14 

15,200,000 

4,000,000 

11,200,000 

6,203,500 

4,996,500 

3,500 

0 

3,500 

5,000,000 

Dec 31, 15 

17,600,000 

5,000,000 

12,600,000 

6,603,500 

5,996,500 

3,500 

0 

3,500 

6,000,000 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net Income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 

Depreciation 

Amortization of contract rights 

Gain/loss on sale of fixed assets 

Change in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in trade accounts receivable 

and unbilled revenue 

(Increasej/decrease in other assets 

Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Increase in deferred revenue 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Acquisition of property and equipment 

Redemption of certificates of deposit 

Purchase of certificates of deposit 

Purchase of contract rights 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash Flows from financing activities 

Payments on long-term obligations 

Cash distributions paid 

Capital contributions from members 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Cash Paid during the year for: 

Interest 

ACTUAL 

2013 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

3,964,120 

76,275 

230,742 

6,855 

(11,262) 

(131,242) 

526,402 

24,145 

4,686,035 

(930,445) 

501,477 

-
-

(428,968) 

-
$ (2,140,000) 

$ -

$ (2,140,000) 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

2,117,067 

1,270,697 

3,387,764 

-

FORECASTED ESTIMATES 

2014 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

5,000,000 

107,261 

196,151 

-

(2,837) 

$ (2,615,000) 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

2,007 

424,654 

3,112,236 

-
-
-
-

-

-
$ (3,000,000) 

$ -

$ (3,000,000) 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

112,236 

3,387,764 

3,500,000 

-

2015 

$ 6,000,000 

$ 200,000 

S 
$ 

$ 
S (4,174,613) 

$ 
$ 

$ 2,025,387 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ (4,000,000) 

$ 

$ (4,000,000) 

$ (1,974,613) 

$ 5,474,613 

$ 3,500,000 

$ 
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Poysier 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 

M A N A O E M E N T 

Exhibit C-6. "Credit Rating" 

Provide a statement disclosing the applicant's credit rating as reported by two of the fol lowing organizations: 
Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, Standard 8t 
Poors, or a similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, i t may 
substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a statement 
signed by a principal officer o f the applicant's parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations 
of the applicant. 

Priority Power Management, LLC has the following scores from the two credit agencies listed below: 

• Dun and Bradstreet: 8 0 

• Experian: 8 2 
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P€ywer 
OPUC Cert i f icat ion Appl icat ion fo r / ^g rega to rs /Power Brokers 

M A N A O E M E N T 

Exhibit C-7. "Credit Report" 

Provide a copy of the applicant's credit report f rom Experian, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

Priority Power Management, LLC has provided credit reports from Experian, as well as Dun and Bradstreet 
herein. 
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Q 3 0 O 

• s a 
a 

0esee 

Welcome 

f% txpenan- 5m^r^usinessRepoil5.com' ^̂ t̂ -̂ ^̂ V 
A world of insight 

nfiinIl;i.J.!¥0:"''g@Bil 
Home I My companies 

il.-!':-; 

My account | Products and pricing | Help | 

Business services 

For help reading this report, please review our sample report. 

Search inqui ry : 788301415 / (My company) 

CreditScore^" Report as of: 04/16/14 17:50 ET 

Priority Power Management LLC 

Address: 

Phone: 

Website: 

Experian 
BIN: 

310 W Wall St Ste 500 
Midland, TX 79701-5142 
United States 

972-664-1610 

www. priority power, net 

788301415 

Family Linkage: 

Ultimate 
Parent 

Parent / 

Amen Properties, Inc 
Midland, TX United States 

Amen Properties, Inc 
Headquarters Midland, TX United States 

Current Days Beyond 
Terms (DBT): 

Predicted DBT for 
0 6 / 1 1 / 2 0 1 4 : 

Average Indus t ry DBT: 

1 
8 

Key Personnel: 

SIC Code: 

NAICS Code: 

Business Type: 

Experian File 
Established: 

Experian Years on File: 

Years in Business: 

Total Employees: 

Sales: 

CFO: Kris Oliver 
Coo: Kevin Yung 
Vp: Trenton Cogdill 

8748-Buslness Consulting 
Services, Nee 

8742-Management 
Consulting Services 

1389-011 &Gas Field 
Services, Nee 

541618-Other 
Management 
Consulting 
Services 

541610-Management 
Consulting 
Services 

213112-Support Activities 
For Oil And Gas 
Operations 

Corporation 

January 2001 

13 Years 

13 Years 

4 

$14,311,000 

Payment Tradeiines fsee charts!: 5 

UCC Filings: 1 

^Bus inesses Scoring Worse: 8 2 % 

v^ Bankruptcies: 0 

http:/|^w.^.gmart^|me|sreDorts,corn^^ 4/16/2014 

http://SmartBusinessKeports.com
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Payment Trend Indicator : Stable 

Lowest 6 Month Balance: $100 

Highest 6 Month Balance: $184,300 

Current Total Account 
Balance: 

Highest Credit Amount 
Extended: 

Median Credit Amount 
Extended: 

$600 

$184,200 

$15,700 

v^ Liens: 

v^ Judgments Filed: 

V^ Collections: 

0 

0 

0 

Credit Summary Back to top 

Key Score Factors: 

• Risk associated with the company's industry sector. 
• Number of active commercial accounts. 
• Risk associated with the business type. 
• Employee size of business, 
• Number of good commercial accounts. 
• Length of time on experian's file. 
• Number of commercial accounts with high utilization. 
• Nbr of leasing accts as pet of total nbr of accts. 

Recommended Act ion: Low Risk 

The objective of the Credit Ranking 
Score is to predict payment 
behavior. High Risk means that 
there is a signif icant probabi l i ty of 
del inquent payment. Low Risk 
means tha t there is a good 
probabi l i ty of on- t ime payment. 

Payment Summary Back to too 

l- Months Payment Trends 1 
• O Industry - • This Company 

80% 

60%-

40%-

20%-

" 

> 

U%-'i 1 1——1— 1 — 1 
10/13 11^3 12/13 01/14 02^4 03/14 

*Percentage of on-time payments by month. 

Monthly Payment Trends - Recent Act iv i ty 

03/13 06/13 09/13 12/13 03/14 

*Percentage of on-time payments by quarter. 

Quarterly Payment Trends - Recent Act iv i ty 

http:^\ww^imrt|^sinessreport;s.com/repo^^ 4/16/2014 

http://SmartBusmessKeports.com
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Date 

10/13 

11/13 

Balance Current 

$100 100% 

$100 100% 

12/13 $184,300 100% 

01/14 

02/14 

03/14 

$27,700 100% 

$1,600 100% 

$6,900 100% 

Up to 
30 
DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

3 1 -
60 

DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

6 1 -
90 

DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

> 9 0 
DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

Date Balance Current 

03/13 $100 100% 

06/13 $100 100% 

09/13 $100 100% 

12/13 $70,700 100% 

03/14 $4,100 100% 

Up to 
30 
DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

3 1 -
60 

DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

6 1 -
90 

DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

> 9 0 
DBT 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

Cdntmuous Payment Trends 1 
^•mrvvL 1 1 

1 80%-

1—
 

1 

20%-

i 0%-
C 

• 
^1 
H • 
^1 • .̂. 
IH 
irrent1-30 31-6061-90 >90 

Insufficient information to produce Insufficient information to produce 
Newly Reported Payment Combined Payment Trends 

Trends chart, 
chart. 

•Continuous distribution with DBT. 
Number of Accounts: 3 
Present Balance: $600 

Highest Balance: $200,000 

Number of Accounts: 0 
Present Balance: $0 
Highest Balance: $0 

Number of Accounts: 3 
Present Balance: $500 

Highest Balance: $200,000 

* The informat ion herein is furnished in confidence for your exclusive use for legi t imate 
business purposes and shall not be reproduced. Neither Experian nor i ts sources or 

d is t r ibutors warrant such in format ion nor shall they be l iable for your use or rel iance upon i t . 

© 2014 Experian In fo rmat ion Solut ions Inc. 

Back to top 

Print Email report Receipt 

<< Matches New search 

Home I My companies | My account | Products and pricing | Help | Business services 

http://www.smartbusinessrepprts.coni/report.aspx?pnum=1015&fn=788301415&day=106... 4/16/201' 
^ Priority PowerManagement, LLC f t- t- J p g^ 

http://SmartBusmessKeports.com
http://www.smartbusinessrepprts.coni/report.aspx?pnum=1015&fn=788301415&day=106


Dim & Bradstreet 
C R B D I B I I - I T T C O R P D&B 

Priority Power Management, Lie DUNS: 12-838-6344 

Dashboard 

Company Info 

310 W Wall St ste 500 
Midland, TX 79701 

Phone: (432)620-9100 

URL: www,prioritypower,net 

Scores 

\ 

PAYDEX® 

- " — " • - r 

Score I 

80 • ! 

Delinquency 

Predictor 

Score Class 

^86 A ^ 1 

Financial 

Stress 

j Score 

! 1477^ 

Class 

3 

Supplier Eva!, 

Risk Rating 

1 Rating 

L ! .• ._. 

Credit Limit 

Rec. 

jRecommendation 

1 $25K J 

DandB 

Rating 

Rating 

1R3 j 

Recent Alerts 

INQL'IKY 04/16/14 1 New Inquiry 04/10/14 

^..^^.^.|^^^,^,^^ 

l̂ --""""* 02/26/14 Financial Stress Score 
Declined 

^ SCORt 02/26/14 Supplier Evaluation Risk 
Rating Improved 

Inquiries 

Most Recent 

Date SIC / Sector 

04/t«14 

04/07/14 

04/07/14 

02/20/14 

Transportation, 
Cdmrtunic^^tons, 
Electric, Gas and 
Sanitary Services 

Retail Trade 

Retail Trade 

Manufacturing 

MantiftioJwIng 

Report type 

Comprehensive Report 

Comprehensive Report 

CompreheHsive Report 

Comprehensive Report 

Compretensive Report 

Top 5 Inquiries by SIC / Sector (12 Months) 
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21 

Tfmmms''&'»m 

hSJVKB 
UmfioQturng 

Top 5 Inquiries by Report Type (12 Months) 

iJ|jS«?y5B^iF*fi^»P3 

Raport 

1 

OtMnr 

Scores 

80 • 
ON TERMS 

3 Month PAYDEX® 

80 
120 Days Slow 30 Days Slow Prompl 

Understanding My Score 

The D&B PAYDEX® is a unique, dollar weighted indicator of payment performance based on 
payment experiences as reported to D&B by trade references. 

^ Recent Payments 

Total (Last 12 Months): 18 
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04/2014 

03/2014 

03/2014 

03/2014 

; 030114 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Date ^ Paying Record ' High Credit i Now Owes i Past Due ! Sell ing Terms ! Last sale w/f ( M o . ) 

4-5 mos 

1 mo 

1 mo 

1 mo 

1 n » 

^ ̂ '1250 

$0 

'$200fi)0^ 

$250 

''"• ""ftso 

' •0 

$250 

$1,000 

$0 

$b 

' « 

$0 

'' -M^ 
$0 

'$0 

= * i . 

-
t : , j .^ 

-

''wm ^ 

Key 

PAYDEX® 

100 

90 

80 

70 

60 

50 

Payment Practices 

Anticipate 

Discount 

Prompt 

15 Days Beyond 

22 Days Beyond Terms 

30 Days Beyond Terms 

PAYDEX® 

Il 40 

30 

II 20 

\ 1-19 

il LIN 

Payment Practices 

60 Days Beyond Terms 

90 Days Beyond Terms 

120 Days B^ond Terms 

Over 120 Days Beyond Terms 

Unavalatile 

Trends 

60 

SO 

40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

._. ...... 

• 

y 

sf 

1 - -

80' 

-

80' 

— "^ 

—— 

80: 80; 80 80 

— ' 

80 80, 80, 8 0 i : 

i -'~ 

Apr 
2013 

May 
2013 

Jul 
2013 

Jun 
2013 

Aug 
2013 

Sep 
2013 

New 
2013 

Jan 
2014 

del 
2013 

Dec 
2013 

(vter 
2014 

Feb 
2014 

Industry Comparison 
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100 

90 

80 

70 

60 

50 

40 

30 

20 : 

to 

0 : 

8u; 80 
wm»m 

79' 

SO; SOi 

79! 791 7S' 

SO: 

79j 

0 2 
2012 

Q3 
2012 

Q4 
2012 

Q1 
2013 

Q2 
2013 

Q3 
2013 

Crt 
2013 

01 
2014 

IVIy Company (80) Industry Median: (79) 

Based on payments collected over the last 4 quarters. 
• Current PAYDEX® for this business is 80, or equal to ON TERMS 
• The present industry median score is 79, or equal to 2 days beyond terms. 

Delinquency Predictor Score 

Score Class Percentile 

586 1 92% 
< i ^ 

High Moderate Law 

Low risk of severe payment 
delinquency over next 12 months 

m!̂ mM0^Mmiimê &^^KmsMmkmfik«^^m.̂ ^mm 'ii^^m0:r^i^s;^MmMi^^MMmx^f^M^xmiMksiS^si^ 

The D&B Delinquency Predictor (formerly the Commercial Credit Score) predicts the likelihood that 
a company will pay in a severely delinquent manner (91+ days past term) over the next 12 months, 
seek legal relief from creditors, or cease operations without paying all creditors in full over the next 
12 months based on the information in D&B's database. A severely delinquent firm is defined as a 
business with at least 10% of its dollars 91+ days slow. 

Incidence of Delinquent Payment: 

Among Companies with this Classification: 1.10% 

Factors Affecting Your Score: 

Limited time under present management control 

Higher risk industry based on delinquency rates for this Industry 

Key 
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Risk Class % of Businesses within this Class 

10%: 

20% 

40% 

20% 

10% 

m-iQQ 

71-90 

31-70 

11-30 

T-10 

580-8K) 

530-579 

48^129' 

453-480 

101-4S«'' 

Trends - Scores, 12 Month 

1000 

900 

BOO 

700 

6G0 

500 

400 

300 

200 

too 

0 

- " -^^ 
581; 

581 581 581 
u.. . t . .». ,- . , .- , 

581, 58i: 581: 581; 58 L 581: 586; 

..... ... .._ — r - :... 

May 
2013 

Jul 
2013 

Sep 
2013 

Apr 
2013 

Jun 
2Cn3 

Aug 
2013 

Oc1 
2013 

MDV Jan 
2013 2014 

EBC F=eb 
2013 201 4 

• MyjCompajiy (586) 

Industry Comparison 

92% 

This Business 

80% 

43% 52% 

Industry + Begten 
WEST 

SOUTH 
CENTRAL 

43% 

Industry + Y«er In 
Busln«B9 

3-5 

Industry 
BUSINESS, 

LEGAL 
AND 

ENeiNEERINQ 
SERVICES 

Industry + Employee 
Range 
20-99 

This business has a Credit Score Percentile that shows: 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same industry. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same employee size range. 
• Lower risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

Financial Stress Score 

Priority Power Management, LLC 

Score Class 
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1477 • 3 50% 
Moderate risk of severe financial 

stress, such as a bankruptcy, over 
the next 12 months 

Htgh Modefale Law 

Understanding My Score 
-.5-̂  i ^ . ^ * - . * - * a*j; - . " . ^ 

Incidence of Financial Stress: 

Among Companies with this Classification: 

Factoid Affecting Your Score: 

0.24 (84 per 10000) 

High number of inquiries to D & B over last 12 months. 

Limited time under present management control 

The Financial Stress Class Summary Model predicts the likelihood of a firm ceasing business without paying 
all creditors in full, or reorganization or obtaining relief from creditors under state/federal law over the next 12 
months. Scores were calculated using a statistically valid model derived from D&B's extensive data files. 

Notes: 
e The Financial Stress Class indicates that this firm shares some of the same business and financial 

characteristics of other companies with this classification. It does not mean the firm will necessarily 
experience financial stress, 

e The Incidence of Financial Stress shows the percentage of firms in a given Class that discontinued 
operations over the past year with loss to creditors. The Incidence of Financial Stress - National Average 
represents the national failure rate and is provided for comparative purposes. 

• The Financial Stress National Percentile reflects the relative ranking of a company among all scorable 
companies in D&B's file. 

• The Financial Stress Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Class and 
Percentile, It is especially helpful to customers using a scorecard approach to determining overall business 
performance. 

• All Financial Stress Class, Percentile, Score and Incidence statistics are based on sample data from 

Key 

Score 

j 1570-1875 

1510-1569 

} 1450-1509 
j 
1 1340-1449 

j 1001-1339 

Class 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Percentile 

95-100 

69-94 

34-68 

2-33 

1 

6.0% 1 

10.6% j 

18.4% i 

31.5% 1 

70,0% 

! Trends - Scores, 12 Month 
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: I5Q2: 1502: 1502^ 1502; 1502; 1502- 1502| 1502; 1 see; 1502; 1502; 

May 
2013 

Jul 
2013 

Sep 
2013 

Apr 
2013 

Jun 
2013 

Aug 
2013 

Del 
2013 

Nov Jan 
2013 2014 

Dec Feb 
2013 2014 

• My Company (1,477) 

Industry Comparison 

5 0 % 
66% 

52% 

This Business 

44% 

Industry + Region 
WEST 
SOUTH 

CENTRAL 

39% 

Industry + Vear In 
Business 

3-5 

Industry 
BUSINESS, 

LE6AL 
AND 

EN6INEERINQ 
SERVICES 

Industry * Employee 
Range 
20-99 

Based on payments collected over the last 4 quarters, 
e Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 
• Higher risk than other companies in the same industry. 
• Higher risk than other companies in the same employee size range. 
• Lower risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

Supplier Evaluation Risk Rating 

1 • 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 «V! 

High Law 

Low risk of supplier experiencing severe 

financial stress over the next 12 months. 

U nderstaPMting MyeSnaf^ement, LLC 

The Supplier Evaluation Risk (SER) Rating predicts the likelihood that a supplier will cease 
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business operations or become inactive over the next 12 month period based on the depth of 
predictive data attributes available on the business. The SER Rating scoring system uses statistical 
probabilities to classify public and private companies into a 1-9 risk rating, where 1 represents low 
risk and 9 represents high risk. 

Factors Affecting This Company's Score: 

Higher risl< industry based on inactive rate for this industry 

Limited time under present management control 

Trends 

3 3 3 3 3 3 

r<i1ay 
2013 

Jul 
2013 

Sep 
2013 

Now 
2013 

Jan 
2014 

Apr 
2013 

Jun 
2013 

Aug 
2013 

CCI 
2013 

Dee 
2013 

Feb 
2014 

My Company (1) 

Credit Limit Recommendation 

Risk Category 

1 
Conservative Credit Limit 

$25k 

Aggressive Credit Limit 
$45k 

High Uodsrale 

Low 

Understanding My Score 

D&B's Credit Limit Recommendation is intended to help you more easily manage your credit decisions. It provides 

two recommended dollar guidelines: 

A conservative limit, which suggests a dollar benchmark if your policy Is to extend less credit to minimize risk. 

An aggressive limit, which suggests a dollar benchmark If your policy Is to extend more credit with potentially more 

risk. 

The dollar guideline amounts are based on a historical analysis of credit demand of customers In D&B's U.S. 

payments database which have a similar profile to your business. 

D&B Rating® 
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H 1 1 O Composite Credit Appraisal: 

• D&B Ratinq Date Applied ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ | 

!:m9^' 2011-03-16 i 

Undf Intending My Score 

Factors Affecting Your Score 
# of Employees Total: 26 (5 here) 

Sales: $7,200,000.00 

Payment Activity (based on 18 experiences): 

Average High Credit: $12,734 

Highest Credit: $200,000 

Total Highest Credit: $204,350 

Note: The Worth amount in this section may have been adjusted by D&B to reflect 
typical deductions, such as certain intangible assets. 

3 is feir 

Inquiries 

12 Month Summary 
Over the past 12 months ending 4-2014, 41 individual requests for information on 
your company were received; this represents a 51.22% increase over the prior 12 
month period. The 41 inquiries were made by 21 unique companies indicating that 
some companies have inquired on your business multiple times and may be 
monitoring you. Of the total products purchased, 21, or 51.22% came from the 
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate sector; 5, or 12.20% came from the 
Manufacturing sector; 3, or 7.32% came from the Mining sector. 

12 Mo. Total: 41 

12 Mo. Unique Companies: 21 

04/10/14i 
I 

04/07/14i 

02/20/14 

02/20/14 

02/17/14 

01/10/14 

01/10/14 

12/16/13 

12/06/11 

10/21/13 

10/04/13 

10/04/13 

Report type 

Comprehensive Ref»rt 

Comprehensive Report 

ComprehwsK® Rep«t 

Comprehensive Report 

Comprehensive Report 

Comprehensive Report 

C # j p r « t d M ^ R e p o r t 

Comprehensive Report 

iOelinquency ft^fctor 
IScormg|5^» t t - ' 

Comprehensive Report 

;i}ei*jtiuency Pre^tt*..' 
' l l j ^ Report ' 

Delinquency Predictor 
Scoring Report 

SIC / Sector 

^ i ^ h e n s i v e B̂ fmfi.. 

Prior i tvPower^Manai 
Compreriensive Report 

Transportation, Communications, 
Electric, Gas and Sanitary Services 

Retail Trade 

Retail Tratte 

Manufacturing 

Manufacturing 

Mining 

Mining ..:• .;" n. ^-/iiS^fft'S-y^ 

Mining 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Manufacturing 

Retail Trade 

Construction 

Cbn^trucfion 
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09/20/13 

09/20/13 

Wmm 

08/21/13 

0 8 « | ; 

07/23/13 

07/11/13 

omZWt i •' C o m p ^ t f i s i v e .Report 

09/27/13 Comprehensive Report 

. . ^ m i n ^ ^ f c h e n s i v e ' R e f w t . -

09/24/13 others 

0W20/13 . . . P a y m & \ t f f 0 ^ ' i i ^ m i 

09/20/13 Payment Analysis Report 

'"Oapwai P a y s w ^ ^ a t y ^ ^ p o r t 

09/20/13 Payment Analysis Report 

f > i ^a | t _ ^ i a t ys te : ^ ^ t 

Payment Analysis Report 

j ^ f 2 0 l , - | | ? fc«t iprefe^fee Reporf* 

Comprehensive Report 

Comprehensive Report 

Rfiomprefwrtsive F ^ ^ 

Comprehensive Report 

C(»n(^r t ie(^^ ' , fepor t 

05/20/13: Comprehensive Report 

05/10/13 

05/10/13 

05/10/13, 

05/10/13 

0»10/13 

05/10/13 

05/10/13; Compreftirtsive Report 

Services 

Whol^aleTracte -

Wholesale Trade 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Finance, InsunMe'and Real. E ^ t e ' 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

F l ^ ^ ^ , Insurance and R ^ . ^ ^ | ^ . 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

D e l i n q g p ^ 'Pro l r th ' ' ' 
Scori t^ l teport '-̂  

Delinquency Predictor 
Scoring Report 

. O ^ ^ B e n c y P ^ i c t o r . • 
I StSMing Report 

Delinquency Predictor 
Scoring Report 

D e l ^ l S i C y P i^ i c to r 
S t « ^ Report'"'.' 

Delinquency Predictor 
Scoring Report 

05/10/13 Comprehensive Report 

5i5/10/13|#flmpreh^lSiwe Report' 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Sa'Vfees 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

W i o t e ^ l e Trade -.. ; # f i 

Services 

J ^ ^ t c e , hmtrarK^ and p ^ Estate 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

F ^ ^ W , Insurance and R ^ . ^ ^ 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

• '^fcnce. Insurance and ^ ^ f e t a t e _ 

Finance. Insurance and Real Estate 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

Trends - 1 2 Month 

May 
2013 

Jul 
2013 

Sep 
2013 

Nov 
2013 

Jan 
2014 

Mar 
2014 

PfterityP.Gwef 4 

Top 5 Inquir ies by Repor t 

ti.4LG 



Type (12 Months) 

21 

Top 5 Report Types 

Graph(12 Months) 

25 

Con^nharnwa 
Rapsrl Aredyris 

Ra|»l1 

All Inquiries by Industry and SIC / Sector 

i Construction 

i Finance, Insurance and Real Estate 

j Manufacturing 

i Mining 

i Retail Trade 

! Services 

i Transportation, Communications, Electric, Gas and Sanitary 

j Services 

! Wholesale Trade 

Jul 2013 to ; Oct 2013 to ' Jan 2014 to ! Apr 2014 to Total 

J 2013 

0 

10 

0 

0 

0 

1 

0 

1 

Dec 2013 

2 

9 

2 

0 

1 

2 

0 

2 

Mar 2014 

0 

2 

1 

2 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2 

21 

5 

3 

3 

3 

1 

3 

: Inquiries by Report Type 
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Report Type 

Business lni :^ lBtton Report 

: Comprehensive Report 

Def'ffiquawy P r f ^ r f ' i e w i n g Report *' 

1 Others 

PayiTient j^f ialysis,^port : 

—" ^ " 

Jul 2013 to 

Sep 2013 

^m-:' ., 
6 

'̂ A- n ...... 

0 

0 

Oct 2013 to 

Dec 2013 

' -0 . 

10 

,1 

1 

6 

Jan 2014 to 

Mar2014 

0:...̂ ' 

3 

2 ; 

0 

0 

— '—"•—-

Apr 2014 to 

Jun 2014 

0 .;'-'•' 

6 

'"'o 

0 

.'-''"o 
_ _ „ . , . „ ™ . , _ _ , . . _ 

Total 

0 ,. 
i 

25 

1' 

'̂ '̂̂ '̂̂  ̂ '1: 
1 

• ' " .B 

" " 

Payments Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

Payments Summary 

Current 
PAYDEX®: 
Industry Median: 
Payment Trend: 

80 Equal to ON TERMS 

79 Equal to 2 DAYS BEYOND terms 
••* Unchanged, compared to payments three months ago 

Total payment Experiences in D&Bs File (HQ): 18 
Payments Within Terms (not dollar weighted): 100 
Total Placed For Collection: NA 
Average Highest Credit: 12,734 
Largest High Credit: 200,000 
Highest Now Owing: 1,000 
Highest Past Due: NA 

Payments Summary by Industry 

Total (Last 12 Months): 18 
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Top I n d u ^ i ^ 

Electric services 

Public fins^B "•''^ 

Telephone communictns 

MisBlwrtess credit 

Who! electrical equip 

:^»ii^ement.«#tees 

Personal credit 

.Ret ' r M l ^ e r l ^ u s e 

Whol office supplies 

L ^ ^ ^ f c t o prin«nf-̂ >- -''-

Other Categories 

Cash e)̂ pferiences 

Unknown 

Unfavorable comBK»is 

Placed for collections with D&B: 

Other 

Total in D&B's file 

• Total 

Received 

1 4 

2 
t 

'• 2 

2 

2 

0 

0 , ,,.r 

0 

a. ::::i 

18 

Total Dollar 

Amount 

$200 

$«,250 

$300 

SS»s 

$200,000 

.... ...filctf 

$250 

-:;i^r-;;;g $100^ 

$100 

1^ $50' 

• .r.*i:- ' ' ' $600 

$0 

m' 
$0 

..: -W»' 

$204,350 

Largest High Credit 

Payment summary 

$50 

. * { # - ; - ' ^ ' ' $1,000' 

$250 

: H | S » * - ' 5250' 

$200,000 

"̂  $1,(X)0" 

$250 

'•' $100 

$100 

$50 

*"*" ' ' • $500 

$0 

$0 

$0 

'' $0 

$200,000 

Days Slow 

31 ; 30-80 •: 81-90 ' 90 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

0 

0 

0 

• i t . 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Payments Beyond Terr 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

All Payments 

Total (Last 12 Months): 18 

Priority Power Management, LLC Page 103 



1 
1' 

DateV 

04 /»14 

'03/2014 

= 03/2Of#' 

; 03/2014 

l 0 3 / a i 4 

' 03/2014 

i 0 3 / » 1 4 ' 

: 03/2014 

i 0^20*4 : 

1 02/2014 

[.01I20M 

' 12/2013 

! 09/2013 

1 •- • . > -

! 06/2013 

1 05/2013 

;04/afl3 

I 07/2012 

Paying Record 

P p t . 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

ppt 

Ppt 

Ppt 

(014) 

Ps* 

(016) 

i f p t . ^ 

Ppt 

. ^̂  ^^ 

' High Credit 

$250 

-

' $ » 0 ^ 

$250 

flOi' 

$50 

$50' 

$50 

*50 

$50 

$100 

$1,000 

sisq. 

$100 

•".' $ ^ , m 

$500 

$250 

$50 

^'"^ 

Now Owes 

$0 

$250 

$1,000 

$0 

" ' " to 

$50 

" $ i 0 

$50 

:$50: 

$50 

$0 

$0 

" . v . .,'* $0 

-

' ^' - 1 

-

$0 

-

~"' 

Past Due ' Selling Terms 

, $0 -

$ o i -

.!'€ 
$0 

"• " s o 

$0 

'^"$o; 

$0 

'••' w 

$0 

.̂  .',.:. $o' 

~ 

-

•N30 

-

te. ' ' 

-

' • • : 

-

N3Q , , 

$ 0 i -

, $0 

~ 

- . . 

-

;. .-'Sft.. 

~ ,., .... ^ 

Cash account 

::.'*' 

Cash account 

' Lastsale w/f (Mo.) 

4-5rnii» 

1 mo 

I m o , ^ ' •! 

1 mo 

1 mo 1 

1 mo 

1 mo 1 

1 mo 

1 mo j 

i 

2-3 r ^ '" i 

6-12 mos 

6-12 mos 1 

6-12 mos 

=1 mo j 

1 mo 

1mo:^ ' 

1 mo 

Indications of slowness can be the result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. Accounts are sometimes placed in 
collection even though the existence or amount of debt is disputed. 

The public record items contained in this report may have been paid, temninated, vacated or released prior to the date this report was 
printed. 

History & Operations Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

Compan 

Company Name: 

Doing Business As: 

Street Address: 

Phone: 

Fax: 

PRIORITY POWER 

MANAGEMENT, LLC 

PRIORITY POWER 

MANAGEMENT, LLC 

310 W Wall St Ste 

500 

Midland, TX 79701 

(432)620-9100 

(432) 620-9145 

URL: 

Stocit Symbol: 

History: 

Operations: 

Present IVIanagement Control : 

Annual Sales: 

www.prioritypower.net 

NA 

NA 

NA 

4 Years 

$7,200,000 

The following infomiation was reported: 03/08/2014 

Officer(s): 
PADRAIG ENI^IS^MNftMBR. 
JOHN BICK, ;Power Management, LLC Page 104 
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The Texas Secretary of State's business registrations file showed that Priority Power Management, LLC was registered as a Limited 
Liability Company on December 18, 2007. 
Business started 2001, Present control succeeded Oct 2010. 

RECENT EVENTS: 
On September 7, 2012, John Bick, Managing Principal, stated that Priority Power Management, LLC, Midland, TX, 

has acquired the energy management and advisory services business unit of THG Energy & Technology Solutions, LLC, Tulsa, OK, last 
August 31, 2012. The acquired unit is located in Fort Worth, Texas, and will now be an office of Priority Power Management, LLC. 
On December 13, 2010, sources stated that Priority Power Management, LLC, Midland, TX, announced the opening ofa new office in 
Abilene, Texas and the addition of two industry veterans to the Priority Power Management team on November 2, 2010. The office will 
be led by Bob Forman and Kevin Bredemeyer, two industry veterans who have recently joined the company as the Directors of 
Business Development. Further details are unavailable. 
On September 11, 2007, Amen Properties, Inc, Midland, TX, announced that it has acquired Cogdill Enterprises, Inc, dba Cogdill Energy 
Consultants (CEC), Euless, TX. Cogdill Enterprises, Inc. will be integrated with Amen's wholly-owned subsidiary, Priority Power 
Management, LLC Further details and tenns were not disclosed. 
PADRAIG ENNIS born 1960. 1981-2001 was employed with TXU as a Key Account Manager. 2001- present active here. 
JOHN BICK. 2003-present active here. 

Business address has changed from 303 W Wall St Ste 1100, Midland, TX, 79701 to 310 W Wall St Ste 500, Midland, TX, 79701. 

Business Registration 

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR OTHER OFFICIAL SOURCE AS 
OF 
APRIL 14 2014. 

Registered Name: 

Business Type: 

Corporation Type: 

Date Incorporated: 

State of Incorporation: 

Filing Date: 

FilingFedlD: 

Registration ID: 

Duration: 

Duration Date: 

Status: 

Status Attained Date: 

Where Filed: 

Registered Agent: 

Agent Appointed: 

AgentStatus: 

Principals: 

JOHN BICK, MANAGER, 

PRARIE, TX, 750800000 

PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY CO 

NA 

NA 

TEXAS 

Dec 182007 

NA 

0800912669 

PERPETUAL 

NA 

IN EXISTENCE 

NA 

SECRETARY OF STATE, AUSTIN, TX 

PADRAIG ENNIS, 310 W. WALL STREET, SUITE 500, MIDLAND, TX, 

797010000 

NA 

NA 

PAT ENNIS. MANAGER, 310 W. WALL ST., SUITE 500, MIDLAND, TX, 

797010000 

2080 N. HIGHWAY 360, STE 360, GRAND 

Operations 

03/08/2014 

Description: 
Provides business consulting services, specializing in energy conservation (100%). 

Terms are uni^Mf^icP^i fs ' ' '^?!^^M!Sklfyremtory : Regional. Page 105 



Employees: 26 which includes partners and 1 part-time. 5 employed here. 

Facilities: Occupies premises in a building. 

Location: NA 

Branches: This business has multiple branches; detailed branch/division information is available in D & B's linkage or family tree. 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

Subsidiaries: NA 

SIC & NAICS 

SIC: 
Based on information in our file, D&B has assigned this company an extended 8-digit SIC. D&B's use of 8-digit SICs 
enables us to be more specific to a company's operations that if we use the standard 4-digit code.The 4-digit SIC 
numbers link to the description on the Occupational Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) Web site. Links open in 
a new browser window. 

8748 9904 Energy conservation consultant 

NAICS: 
541690 Other Scientific and Technical Consulting Services 

Public Filings Currency: Shown in USD unless otherwise indicated 

Summary 

The following data includes both open and closed filings found in D&B's database on this company. 

Record Type # of Records Most Recent Filing Date 

Bankruptcy Proceedings 

Judgments 

Liens 

Suits 

UCCs 

-

0 

0 

0 

1 

-

-

-

-

01/21/14 

The following Public Filing data is for information purposes only and is not the official record. 

Certified copies can only be obtained from the official source. 

Judgments 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 
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We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

Government Activity 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

Banking & Finance 

Financial Statements 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

Special Events 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

Corporate Linkage 

Parent 

Company Name 

PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 12-838-6344 

City, State 

MIDLAND, TEXAS 

Headquarters (US) 

Company Name 

PRIORITY POWER MANAGEMENT, LLC 12-838-6344 

City, State 

MIDLAND, TEXAS 

US Linkages 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 

International Linkages 

We currently don't have enough data to display this section. 
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PriorityPower 
OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers " " " * ' ' " " ' ' • ^ 

Exhibit C-8. "Bankruptcy Information" 

Provide a list and description of any reorganization, protection from creditors or any other form ofbankruptcy 
filings made by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the 
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent years preceding the 
application. 

Priority Power IVIanagement, LLC has never conducted any reorganization, protection from creditors or any 
other form of bankruptcy filings. 

Since we do not have a parent company, or any affiliates, the same holds true. 

The two principal officers of the company have also never conducted any reorganization, protection from 
creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings. 
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OPUC Certification Application for Aggregators/Power Brokers 
PriorityPower 

m A H A o m m m H T 

Exhibit C-9. "Merger Information" 

Provide a statemettt describing any dissolution or merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most 
recent years preceding the application. 

Management Buyout 

Prior to October 1, 2010, Priority Power Management, LLC was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Amen Properties, 
Inc. ("AMEN") (www.amenproperties.com). 

In January 2010, AMEN signed new employment agreements with John Bick and Pat Ennis, the executives 
responsible for the management of Priority Power Management. The agreements were effective December 1, 
2009 with a term of five (5) years. 

In connection with these new employment agreements, AMEN also issued a warrant to Bick and Ennis entitling 
them collectively to purchase 80% of the equity of Priority Power Management for a price of $10. The warrant 
had an expiration date of December 1, 2014 and vested only upon the delivery of $1.9 million in cash earnings 
by Priority Power Management to AMEN. Additionally, AMEN issued an option to Bick and Ennis entitling them 
to purchase AMEN's retained 20% ownership in Priority Power Management for the price of $480,000. This 
purchase option had an expiration date of December 1, 2012. 

On October 1, 2010, Bick and Ennis exercised their warrant to purchase 80% of the equity of Priority Power 
Management for a price of $10. Additionally, they exercised their option to purchase the remaining 20% of 
Priority Power Management for a price of $480,000. 

As a result, the ownership of 100% of the equity of Priority Power Management transferred from AMEN to Bick 
and Ennis equally (50%/50%) on October 1,2010. 

Priority Power Management, LLC 
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